
International Steel Group Inc.

2 0 0 3 A N N U A L  R E P O R T

ISG  The Future of American Steel



This Is ISG
Although many perceive the challenges that face today’s steel industry 

to be great, we think these are exciting times full of opportunity. Our

strength lies in individuals that commit themselves to providing a quality

product at a competitive cost with a focus on our customer’s needs. 

Our newly forged relationship with the USWA is a partnership 

reinforcing ISG’s commitment to the resurgence of the steel industry. 

We look forward to shaping the future with you. 



‘‘

‘‘

T O  O U R  S H A R E H O L D E R S :

Our employees are what distinguishes ISG from the
competition. By empowering our employees, ISG has
built a new operating culture emphasizing individual
performance and accountability.

2003 was a very successful year for ISG and our prospects for the future are exciting.

It is gratifying that in less than two years of operation, our Company already is a widely recog-

nized leader in the steel industry as a result of our rapid growth and financial performance.

The reason for our excitement is that we believe we have developed the right formula

for success. Our philosophy is to acquire assets with minimum liabilities and strong potential

value, forge strong and productive relationships with labor, operate efficiently and provide

high-quality, value-added products to the marketplace. The success of this formula allows us

to say with confidence that ISG represents the future of American steel.

Our acquisition of Bethlehem Steel in May and our initial public offering in December

were two major steps in our effort to build a strong and profitable company for the long

term. We have integrated Bethlehem into the structure of ISG quickly and effectively, and

our financial results have benefited from a richer product mix as a result of the acquisition.

Our IPO was one of the year’s most successful in any industry, and the stock price has appreciated significantly.

Proceeds from the offering enabled us to reduce our debt and move closer toward our goal of achieving investment

grade credit metrics.

The year ended on a promising note as production and shipments increased significantly and prices improved.

In addition, we have strengthened our position in coke, scrap and iron ore, our primary raw materials. By main-

taining a balance of owned assets, long-term contracts and spot purchases, we are ensuring an optimal supply of

these raw materials and limiting our exposure to market volatility.

Our progress continues in 2004. During the first quarter, we announced an agreement to purchase the

assets of Weirton Steel Corporation for $255 million, pending bankruptcy court approval. We also announced that

we will restart a continuous caster at the Cleveland Works, which will provide additional steel production to better

serve the market.

In addition, we are pleased that Rand V. Araskog, James C. Boland and Peter J. Powers have joined our Board

of Directors. Good corporate governance requires the creation of an independent and effective Board, and we look

forward to the added perspectives and experience that these three new members will contribute.

For the rest of 2004, we expect the current strong domestic steel environment to persist as exchange rates

and transportation costs make it tougher for imports. Underlying market conditions for the North American inte-

grated steel industry are more favorable today than at any time in the past 20 years. We expect selling prices to

remain strong with continuing improvement in our product mix and profit margins during the year.

Perhaps most importantly, ISG’s promise for the future stems from the culture we have established. We are

committed to high productivity, cost control and being responsive to the changes occurring in our industry. This is due

largely to the hard work and dedication of our employees. Our thanks go to all of our employees for making 2003 such

a good year, and we thank you, our shareholders, for your recognition and support of our efforts. We will continue

to work diligently to maintain our leadership position, shape the future of our industry and maximize long-term

shareholder value.

Rodney B. Mott

President & CEO

April 19th, 2004

Rodney B. Mott
President and CEO
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International Steel Group was formed in April of 2002 
to create value through the profitable operation of 

globally competitive steel plants.

Through a combination of strategic acquisi-

tions, a sound operating philosophy and productive

labor relationships, ISG continues to strengthen its

position as a leader in the steel industry.

Since April 2002, the Company has achieved

rapid growth through three major acquisitions—LTV,

Acme Steel and Bethlehem Steel—all of which were

previously involved in bankruptcy proceedings. In 2003,

ISG strengthened its position in the plate market by

acquiring US Steel’s plate operation in Gary, Indiana.

In addition, ISG announced in February 2004 that it

intends to purchase substantially all of the assets of

Weirton Steel Corporation, pending bankruptcy court

approval and the satisfaction of other conditions.

These acquisitions, enhanced by a commitment to

lean and efficient operations, a disciplined financial

strategy and a deep and experienced management

team, have quickly established ISG as a strong com-

petitor and visionary leader.

With the capacity to cast more than 18 million

tons of steel products annually, not including the

pending acquisition of the Weirton facilities, ISG has

become the second-largest integrated steel producer

in North America. Its 11 plants—located in Indiana,

Illinois, Maryland, New York, Ohio and Pennsylvania—

are strategically located to serve the major steel-

consuming markets of North America, and are

among the most modern and well-maintained facilities

in the industry.

The Company produces a broad range of hot-

rolled, cold-rolled and coated sheets, tin mill products,

carbon and alloy plates, rail products, and semi-

finished shapes. These products are sold to a highly

diversified customer base in the automotive, construc-

tion, appliance, plate, rail, container, tin and machinery

markets. ISG holds leadership positions in all of its key

markets. The addition of Weirton will further enhance

the Company’s position in the tin plate and construc-

tion markets.

Growing Stronger

(dollars in millions)
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Sales for the fourth quarter and full year were 
$1.4 billion and $4.1 billion on shipments of 

3.5 million tons and 10.4 million tons, respectively.

The highly successful Bethlehem acquisition in

2003 more than doubled ISG’s shipping capacity and

represented approximately 55 percent of revenues for

the year. It also broadened the Company’s offerings,

increasing the percentage of higher value-added

cold-rolled and coated products in the overall mix.

At the same time ISG has grown, conditions

in the North American steel industry also have

improved. Higher raw material and freight costs and a

relatively weak U.S. dollar have caused imports to be

more expensive than domestically produced products,

thus reducing foreign imports into the domestic mar-

ket. Increasing worldwide demand for steel, particularly

in China, has opened new markets for foreign steel

producers. In addition, the ongoing consolidation of

the domestic steel industry with a reduced number

of competitors, ISG’s focus on a leaner cost structure, 

and increases in scrap prices all have lessened the

traditional cost advantage of mini-mills.

With these improved market trends as a back-

drop, ISG is targeting several areas for growth. Value-

added applications in the automotive (exposed panels,

automobile frames, suspension, safety restraints),

appliance (consumer durables, power tools, lawn

and garden, furniture, shelving and racks), and con-

struction (metal buildings, specialty plate, machinery)

markets all represent profitable growth opportunities

for ISG.

In 2004 and beyond, ISG’s management intends

to continue its disciplined and thoughtful approach to

fully utilize the Company’s existing capacity, target

growth opportunities and pursue strategic acquisitions

that will contribute further to the future strength and

profitability of the Company.

(dollars in millions)
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Our skilled and lean work force takes pride in 
the ownership of both the product and 

the production process. 

Flexible and Motivated

Shipments of cold-rolled steel and other
value-added products increased to 54% of
total shipments in 2003.54%

ISG’s operating philosophy emphasizes perform-

ance and productivity through broadened responsibil-

ity and accountability at every level. The management

structure is decentralized, and employees have the

opportunity to benefit directly from their contribu-

tions to the Company’s profitability through variable

compensation, including profit sharing. As a result,

ISG has developed one of the most dedicated and

effective workforces in the steel industry.

By working closely with the United Steelworkers

of America, ISG has been able to successfully imple-

ment its strategic plan and integrate its acquisitions.

All of ISG’s principal facilities are covered by an inno-

vative and mutually beneficial labor agreement nego-

tiated with the USWA, designed to maintain the

Company’s competitiveness and profitability in the

marketplace and provide the steelworkers with a fair,

flexible and incentive-driven compensation package.

This landmark agreement is a testament to the union’s

forward-looking leadership.

The agreement has reduced the number of job

classifications from more than 30 to five, broadened

job descriptions, and helped ISG operate effectively

with less corporate staff and fewer layers of manage-

ment. Other highlights of the agreement include a

production bonus program, a six-year term, base

wages that are scheduled to rise 3 percent every 18

months through 2008, shared healthcare benefit

costs, and a profit-sharing program.

ISG’s pending acquisition of Weirton Steel also

has the support of the Independent Steelworkers

Union, which represents Weirton workers. The Com-

pany anticipates creating a strong partnership with

this group of highly skilled employees and negotiating

a contract with the ISU that is similar to its agree-

ment with the USWA.

While the Company demands high productivity

and initiative from its employees, their compensation

also rates highly within the industry, with competitive

base wage rates supplemented by profit-sharing

bonuses.

From the time ISG began operations in 2002,

a strong partnership with labor has been integral to

its strategic plan. Having a productive and motivated

workforce will continue to be a critical factor in the

Company’s ongoing growth and success.
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PART I

Item 1. Business

Our Company

International Steel Group Inc. (ISG) was formed in early 2002 by WL Ross & Co. LLC (WLR) to
acquire and operate globally competitive steel facilities. Since formation, we have grown to become the second
largest integrated steel producer in North America, based on raw steelmaking capability, by acquiring out of
bankruptcy the steelmaking assets of The LTV Corporation (LTV), Acme Steel Company (Acme) and
Bethlehem Steel Corporation (Bethlehem). We have annual raw steel production capability of about
18 million net tons and ship a variety of steel products from 11 major steel producing and Ñnishing facilities in
six states. We operate principally in one segment of business, carbon steel, and substantially all of our
operations are in the United States.

In April 2002, we acquired the principal steelmaking and Ñnishing assets of LTV, including facilities in
Cleveland, Ohio; Indiana Harbor, Indiana; and Hennepin, Illinois. These assets were idle when we acquired
them. In May 2002, we purchased certain semi-Ñnished and raw material inventories from LTV.

In October 2002, we acquired Acme's compact strip mill and basic oxygen furnace in Riverdale, Illinois.
These assets were idle when we acquired them. We supply Riverdale's basic oxygen furnace with hot metal
from blast furnaces at our Indiana Harbor and Burns Harbor facilities.

In May 2003, we acquired substantially all of the assets of Bethlehem and its subsidiaries. We acquired
steelmaking and Ñnishing facilities at Burns Harbor, Indiana; Sparrows Point, Maryland; Coatesville,
Pennsylvania; and Steelton, Pennsylvania. We acquired rolling and Ñnishing facilities at Conshohocken,
Pennsylvania; Lackawanna, New York; and Columbus, Ohio. We acquired eight operating short line railroads
and investments in several joint ventures, including an iron ore mine in Hibbing, Minnesota (Hibbing
Taconite). The Bethlehem facilities substantially broadened our product oÅerings and expanded our
geographic presence.

Since our formation, we have negotiated innovative agreements with the United Steelworkers of America
(USWA) covering all our principal facilities.

On February 19, 2004, we entered into an agreement to acquire most of the assets of the Weirton Steel
Corporation (Weirton) for about $255 million, which includes assuming certain liabilities. Closing is subject
to bankruptcy court approval, anti-trust matters and customary closing conditions. The process of obtaining
bankruptcy court approval will include the solicitation by Weirton of competing oÅers for its assets, and there
can be no assurance that this transaction will be consummated. The acquisition is expected to be completed in
the second quarter of 2004. In 2002, the Weirton facilities reported about 3.0 million net tons of raw steel
capability and shipped about 2.3 million net tons of Ñnished product. Subsequently, we reached a tentative
agreement with the Independent Steelworkers Union at Weirton for a new labor agreement that is expected to
be in place if the transaction closes.

The Domestic Steel Industry

Steel is produced either by integrated steel facilities or electric arc furnaces. Integrated mills use blast
furnaces to produce hot metal typically from iron ore, limestone and coke. Coke is a reÑned carbon product
produced by Ñring coal in large coke ovens. Hot metal is then converted through the basic oxygen process into
liquid steel where it can be metallurgically reÑned. For Öat rolled steel products, liquid steel is either teemed
into ingots for later processing or cast into slabs in a continuous caster machine. The slabs are further shaped
or rolled at a hot strip mill. This may be followed by various Ñnishing processes, including pickling, cold-
rolling, annealing, tempering or coating processes, including galvanizing (zinc coating). These various
processes are often distinct steps undertaken at diÅerent times rather than during a continuous process and
may take place in separate facilities. Steel produced by integrated mills tends to be cleaner or purer than steel
produced by electric arc furnaces since less scrap is used in the production process and scrap contains non-
ferrous tramp elements. These purer products are more often required for value-added applications.
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A mini-mill uses an electric arc furnace to melt steel scrap or scrap substitutes, which for Öat rolled
products is then cast into slabs in a continuous casting process. The slabs are then rolled into Ñnished product.
Mini-mills are designed to accommodate shorter production runs with relatively fast product change-over
time. Mini-mills generally produce a narrower range of steel products than integrated producers and their
products tend to be more commodity in nature; however, mini-mills have historically enjoyed certain
competitive advantages as compared to integrated mills, including lower required capital investment and lower
labor costs per ton shipped.

Since 2000, the domestic steel industry has experienced volatility, marked by declining Ñnished product
prices, Öuctuating domestic capacity and declining demand. As a result of depressed market conditions, many
steelmakers were unable to generate proÑts. Many domestic steelmakers, particularly large integrated steel
producers, have been hampered with signiÑcant ""legacy'' costs, particularly underfunded pension and retiree
health obligations. Since 1997, approximately 35 domestic companies in the steel industry have Ñled for
bankruptcy protection.

The declining value of the U.S. dollar and steel imports combined with surging ocean freight rates, coke
prices and scrap prices in the fourth quarter of 2003 required the domestic steel industry to begin raising
prices. These market conditions have continued into early 2004 and both steel prices and input costs are
expected to be volatile throughout the year.

Products

Our principal products include a broad range of hot-rolled, cold-rolled and coated sheets, tin mill
products, carbon and alloy plates, rail products and semi-Ñnished shapes serving the automotive, construction,
appliance, plate, rail, container, tin and machinery markets. We sell steel products directly to end-users, third-
party processors and service centers primarily located in the Midwest and along the eastern seaboard of the
United States. All of these products are available in standard carbon grades as well as high strength, low alloy
grades for more demanding applications. The following chart sets forth ISG's respective product mixes based
on shipments for 2003 and 2002 and on a pro forma basis as if Bethlehem had been acquired on January 1,
2003.

2003 Pro 2002
Actual forma Actual

Hot Rolled ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 46% 42% 71%

Cold RolledÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 19% 19% 22%

CoatedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 20% 21% 7%

Plate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8% 10% Ì

Tin Plate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4% 4% Ì

Rail and otherÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3% 4% Ì

100% 100% 100%

Hot-Rolled Products. All coiled Öat-rolled steel is initially hot-rolled by passing a slab through a multi-
stand rolling mill to reduce its thickness to less than 5/8 inch. Hot-rolled steel destined for the sheet market
can be either shipped as black band, or cleaned in an acid bath and sold as pickled band. These products are
used in non-critical surface applications such as automotive frames and wheels, construction products, pipe,
oÅ-highway equipment and guardrails.

Cold-Rolled Products. Cold-rolled sheet is hot-rolled coil that has been further processed through a
pickler and then passed through a rolling mill without reheating until the desired gauge, or thickness, and
other physical properties have been achieved. Cold-rolling reduces gauge and hardens the steel. Further
processing through an annealing furnace and a temper mill improves ductility and formability. Cold-rolling
can also impart various surface Ñnishes and textures. Cold-rolled sheet is used in exposed steel applications
that demand higher surface quality, such as exposed automobile and appliance panels. Cold-rolled sheet prices
are usually higher than hot-rolled steel prices. Typically, cold-rolled sheet is coated or painted.
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Coated Products. Either hot-rolled or cold-rolled coil may be coated with zinc to render it corrosion
resistant and to improve its paintability. Hot-dipped galvanized, galvannealed, GalvalumeTM, electrogalvanized
and aluminized products are types of coated steel. These are also the highest value-added sheet products
because they require the greatest degree of processing and usually have the strictest quality requirements.

Coated steel products are used in high volume applications such as automobiles, household appliances,
rooÑng and siding, heating and air conditioning equipment, air ducts, switch boxes, chimney Öues, awnings and
grain bins.

Plate. Plate is steel that is generally more than 3/16 inch thick. It can be made on either a coiled plate
mill up to 1-inch thick or a discrete plate mill. The coiled plate or discrete mill plate is then cut into sections
for speciÑc end uses. Commodity steel plate is used in a variety of applications such as storage tanks, ships and
railcars, large diameter pipe and machinery parts. More specialized steel plate, such as high-strength-low-
alloy, heat-treated, or alloy plate, can have superior strength and performance characteristics for particular
applications such as the manufacture of construction, mining and logging equipment; pressure vessels and oil
and gas transmission lines; and the fabrication of bridges and buildings. Quenched and tempered plate is
harder and stronger and can be used in products such as military armor and hard rock mining equipment.

Tin Mill. Tin mill sheet steel is used to produce food and other containers. It is available as black plate,
tin plate and tin-free steel. Black plate is an uncoated thin gage cold rolled steel, tin plate is black plate
electrolytically plated with metallic tin and tin-free steel is black plate that has been electrolytically plated
with metallic chromium and chromium oxides. Both tin plate and tin-free steel undergo a plating process
whereby the molecules from the positively charged tin or chromium anode attach to the negatively charged
sheet steel. The thickness of the coating is readily controlled through regulation of the voltage and speed of the
sheet through the plating area.

Rail. Billets and blooms are fed through rollers that form rail. Rail is available in a number of sections
determined by their weight per yard and relative strengths. Rail is sold to railroad companies and regional
transit authorities for new track projects as well as the repair of existing track.

Customers

We sell our products to a highly diversiÑed customer base representing all major steel-consuming markets
as well as to third-party processors and service centers. Our customers are primarily in the Midwest and along
the eastern seaboard of the United States. No single customer represented more than 10% of our total
consolidated revenues in 2003 or 2002.

Direct Sales to End-Users. We sell directly to end-users representing a wide range of consuming
markets, including automotive, construction, appliance, transportation, container, machinery and equipment.
Our sales, technical and engineering staÅ are organized with both a speciÑc product (plate, Öat rolled, tinplate
and rail products) and geographic market focus.

Sales to Intermediate Processors and Steel Service Centers. A signiÑcant portion of our sales are to
intermediate processors and steel service centers. These processors and steel service centers typically act as
intermediaries between steel producers and various end-user manufacturers that require further processing or
inventory programs. The additional services performed by steel service centers and processors include pickling,
galvanizing, cutting to length, slitting to size, leveling, blanking, shape correcting, edge rolling, shearing and
stamping.

Contract and Spot Sales. A majority of our sales in 2003 were sold on the spot market with price terms
of three months or less. We expect the Bethlehem asset acquisition to enhance our ability to shift a portion of
our sales to contract sales with price terms typically 12 months or longer over time. With the integration of
Bethlehem's sales, research and production capabilities, we expect to gradually increase our automotive sales
as a percentage of total sales and decrease sales to intermediate processors and service centers.
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International Sales. Historically, the opportunities for sales outside North America of domestic steel
products have been intermittent and highly competitive. Our export sales were $163.4 million in 2003 and
$2.7 million in 2002.

Sales, Customer Service and Product Development

To service our customer base, we have a dedicated sales force of approximately 75 employees, who are
principally aligned with our business units. Each of our major businesses has a dedicated sales and customer
service staÅ on site that is responsible for the products produced by that particular facility. Although each
sales group reports to a speciÑc facility, it has responsibility to represent products and services produced by
other divisions to increase customer convenience and maximize cross-selling opportunities. Our overall sales
strategy is directed by management at our corporate oÇce and implemented by the division sales groups at
each of our businesses.

Technical resources exist within each division sales group, supported by plant technical personnel to help
customers specify the proper material for each end-use. We have created an automotive sales group at our
Burns Harbor facility to act as the focal point for our automotive sales, service and development eÅort.

In connection with the Bethlehem acquisition, we acquired a research and product development facility
and staÅ in Bethlehem, Pennsylvania. During 2003, we spent approximately $5 million for research and
development. In 2002, we did not have spending for research and development.

Backlog

We had approximately $1.3 billion and $300 million of backlog orders on December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. These backlogs consist of customer commitments that generally can be modiÑed or terminated at
any time prior to production. Typically, a customer will modify or cancel an order due to major shifts in their
inventory levels or market conditions that change their need for the product. We estimate that substantially all
of our backlog will be shipped during the next Ñscal year. We do not believe that our backlog data and
comparisons of that data as of diÅerent dates are reliable indicators of future sales or future shipments.

Competition

Competition within the steel industry, both domestically and globally, is intense and expected to remain
so. Our primary domestic competitors are United States Steel Corporation, Nucor Corporation, AK Steel
Holding Corporation and Ispat Inland Inc., as well as IPSCO Inc. However, the steel market in the United
States is also served by a number of foreign sources and domestic supply is subject to changes in worldwide
demand and currency Öuctuations, among other factors.

More than 35 domestic companies in the steel industry have declared bankruptcy in recent years and
have either ceased production or more often continued to operate after being acquired or reorganizing. In
addition, many foreign steel producers are owned and subsidized by their governments, and their decisions
with respect to production and sales may be inÖuenced by political and economic policy considerations rather
than by prevailing market conditions. There is typically considered to be substantial excess global production
capacity, which is likely to continue. This has historically resulted in high levels of steel imports into the
United States, and exerted downward pressure on domestic steel prices.

With the acquisition of the Bethlehem assets, we became the second largest integrated steel producer in
North America based on raw steelmaking capability. We compete with other Öat-rolled steel producers (both
integrated steel mills and mini-mills) and producers of plastics, aluminum, ceramics, carbon Ñber, concrete,
glass, plastic and wood that can be used in lieu of Öat-rolled steels in manufactured products. Mini-mills
generally oÅer a narrower range of products than integrated steel mills but can have some cost advantages as a
result of their diÅerent production processes.

The competition in the cut plate business, both carbon and alloy, is somewhat fragmented with ISG
having the largest capability and the widest product range domestically.
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There is only one other major domestic producer of rail products, Oregon Steel, which has about 50% of
the domestic rail market. Imports have about 20% of the domestic rail market.

Price, quality, delivery and service are the primary competitive factors in all markets that we serve and
vary in relative importance according to the product category and speciÑc customer.

Raw Materials

Our business depends on continued access to reliable supplies of various raw materials, principally iron
ore, coal, coke, scrap, energy and industrial gases. We believe there will be adequate sources of our principal
raw materials to meet our near term needs, although probably at higher prices than in the past.

Iron Ore

For an integrated steelmaker, iron ore is an essential element in the production of steel. In 2003 we
consumed approximately 10.9 million net tons of iron ore pellets and 2.7 million net tons of iron ore Ñnes and
other iron ore materials. We estimate that our needs for 2004 will be approximately 15.5 million net tons of
iron ore pellets and 4.5 million net tons of iron ore Ñnes and other iron ore materials.

Cleveland-CliÅs Inc, one of our stockholders, is under a noncancellable contract to supply all of our
requirements for iron ore pellets through 2016 for our Cleveland and Indiana Harbor facilities. This agreement
will renew on an annual basis after 2016, unless either party gives at least two years' advance notice of
termination. The agreement speciÑes product quality requirements and provides us with the right to negotiate
price adjustments or to refuse to accept shipments of products in some circumstances. The prices we pay for
iron ore pellets under the agreement are subject to annual adjustments for changes in certain price indices and
selling prices for certain steel products, which eÅectively helps maintain our operating margin percentage.

Our share of estimated recoverable reserves in the Hibbing Taconite (See ""Joint Ventures'' under
""PART 1. ITEM 2. PROPERTIES'' of this Annual Report) iron ore mine joint venture at December 31,
2003 is 140 million net tons of iron ore pellets. This mine and its processing facilities supply substantially all of
Burns Harbor's current annual iron ore pellet requirements and are operated by Cleveland-CliÅs Inc, which
also owns 23% of the joint venture.

Contracts are in place for substantially all of Sparrows Point's 2004 requirements for iron ore at prices
established in the international market.

Coal and Coke

Coke, a reÑned carbon product produced by baking coal to drive oÅ volatile matter, is the principal fuel
used to produce hot metal in our blast furnaces. The domestic supply of coke has decreased signiÑcantly over
the last decade and is expected to decrease further in the future primarily due to increased costs of complying
with the requirements of the Clean Air Act and other environmental regulations. In the future, therefore, we
may need to import more of our coke requirements. Our integrated steelmaking facilities have access to both
inland and coastal waterway systems, which enable us to more easily transport our coke needs.

In 2003, we used 4.4 million net tons of coke and estimate that our needs for 2004 will be about
5.5 million net tons. We expect that our coke batteries in Warren, Ohio and Burns Harbor, Indiana will supply
approximately 2.3 million net tons in 2004. We also have contracts through 2005 for 0.3 million net tons per
year, a contract through 2006 for 0.3 million net tons per year and a contract through 2020 for 0.7 million net
tons per year. We have signed an agreement to purchase 0.6 million net tons annually beginning in 2006 from
a coke oven to be constructed. For the remaining 1.9 million net tons of estimated 2004 requirements, we have
placed orders for about 50% of this amount. However, in the current volatile international coke market,
delivery of these orders is not necessarily assured at the agreed prices. Within certain limits, we have the
ability to optimize fuel costs at our blast furnaces by switching among the fuels of coke, natural gas, oil and, at
the Burns Harbor and Sparrows Point facilities, pulverized coal depending on their relative costs.
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2004 short-term coke prices have surged from late 2003 levels because of strong international demand
and rising ocean freight rates. We expect suÇcient coke to be available to meet the balance of our 2004
requirements but at signiÑcantly higher prices than 2003. We estimate that our coke costs will be at least
$200 million higher in 2004 than the fourth quarter of 2003 on an annualized basis. We and other domestic
steel producers have recently announced steel price increases, including surcharges relating to higher costs of
coke and other raw materials, to recover some or all of these cost increases. However, adequate supplies of
coke may not be available to us in the future causing potential production disruption, or prices of these
supplies may continue to increase signiÑcantly.

We used about 2.9 million net tons of coal in 2003 and expect to use about 4.3 million net tons in 2004.
We have contracts for substantially all our 2004 coal requirements for our coke oven batteries and pulverized
coal injection at prices about 10% higher than those in 2003. We do, however, periodically buy small amounts
of coal in the spot market for speciÑc needs.

Scrap

Historically, we use hot metal for approximately 75% of our basic oxygen furnace charge and scrap for
approximately 25%. These percentages can change plus or minus 10 percentage points depending on their
relative costs, availability and other factors. Approximately half of that scrap is generated at our own facilities.
Our electric arc furnaces use scrap for 100% of their production, of which only a small portion is internally
generated. Our estimated scrap purchases in 2004 are 3.0 million net tons. There are no long-term scrap
contracts available as all purchases are in a short-term open market. Scrap prices surged in late 2003 and
continued to rise rapidly in early 2004. Electric arc furnaces use approximately Ñve times more scrap per ton of
liquid steel and, therefore, higher scrap cost is a competitive disadvantage for electric arc furnace steelmakers.
We and other domestic steel producers have recently announced price increases, including surcharges related
to scrap, to recover some or all of these cost increases. We expect scrap to continue to be in suÇcient supply to
satisfy our needs, although at higher prices than in recent history. We expect our Ñrst quarter 2004 scrap costs
to be at least $50 million higher than the fourth quarter of 2003.

Energy and Industrial Gases

Our steel operations consume large amounts of electricity, natural gas, oxygen and other industrial gases.
We purchase our electrical power requirements from various suppliers. In addition, we operate co-generation
facilities on certain of our sites that utilize waste gases from the blast furnaces to supplement our electrical
power requirements and control our energy costs. We purchase natural gas under short-term supply contracts
with a common group of suppliers. We use Ñnancial instruments to hedge such purchases when appropriate.
Various service providers provide transportation of the natural gas to our facilities. We also have several long-
term contracts to supply our oxygen, argon and nitrogen gas requirements.

Employees

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, we had approximately 12,000 and 3,400 employees. Since
December 15, 2002, substantially all of the hourly employees at our steelmaking facilities are under collective
bargaining agreements with the USWA, which expire in late 2008. These agreements were ratiÑed in February
2003 at the acquired LTV and Acme facilities and in June 2003 at the acquired Bethlehem facilities. The
terms of our collective bargaining agreements will also apply, subject to approval by the USWA and
ratiÑcation by the covered workers, to any facilities with USWA-represented employees that we may acquire
in the future. Our collective bargaining agreements are substantially diÅerent from those historically in eÅect
in the domestic steel industry. Our collective bargaining agreements provide for:

‚ a six-year term;

‚ Ñve job classiÑcations with broadened job descriptions;

‚ increased work force Öexibility;

‚ base wages that increase 3% every 18 months through 2008;
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‚ incentive compensation tied to productivity and proÑts per ton shipped;

‚ beneÑt costs that are shared by us and our employees;

‚ a partnership involving both the union and management;

‚ Öexibility to hire contractors for non-core, capital and surge work;

‚ deÑned contributions to USWA retiree healthcare beneÑts based principally on proÑts per ton
shipped and

‚ deÑned contributions to USWA pensions based on the number of employees hired and hours paid.

These features provide greater Öexibility and increased productivity as compared to historical agreements
at integrated steel mills. The absence of signiÑcant deÑned beneÑt pension and retiree health care plans makes
our cost structure signiÑcantly more variable than most of our domestic integrated competitors. We also paid
substantially all of our hourly employees and frontline supervisors production bonuses during every pay period
in 2003. These combined factors make our labor costs competitive with domestic mini-mills and low cost
international integrated producers. Our relations with our hourly-represented employees and the USWA
continue to be positive.

Regulatory Environment

Anti-Dumping Regulations

U.S. steel producers compete with many foreign producers. Competition from foreign producers is
typically strong, and is substantially aÅected by the relative strength of foreign economies, international freight
rates and Öuctuation in the value of the U.S. dollar against foreign currencies, with steel imports tending to
increase when the value of the dollar is strong relative to foreign currencies. The situation has been
exacerbated by a weakening of certain economies, particularly in Eastern Europe, Asia and Latin America.
Because of the ownership, control or subsidization of some foreign steel producers by their governments,
foreign producers production, sales and pricing decisions are often inÖuenced more by political and economic
policy considerations than by prevailing market conditions, realities of the marketplace or consideration of
proÑt or loss. From time to time since 1998, when imports of hot-rolled and cold-rolled sheet products
increased 43% compared to the prior year, domestic steel producers have been adversely aÅected by illegally
""dumped'' imported steel. Dumping involves selling a product below cost or for less than in the exporter's
home country and is a violation of U.S. trade laws. Most foreign markets are less open than the U.S. market;
allowing foreign producers to maintain higher prices in their own markets, while dumping excess production at
lower and often subsidized prices into the U.S. market.

Section 201 TariÅs

On March 20, 2002, in response to a federal investigation of steel imports, President Bush imposed a
remedy under Section 201 of the United State Trade Act. The remedy provided for (1) three years of
declining tariÅs ranging from 9% to 30% on imports of hot-rolled, cold-rolled, coated sheet and tubular steel
products and (2) a three-year increasing tariÅ rate quota on imports of steel slabs.

Several foreign governments, including members of the European Union, Japan, and other countries,
appealed to the World Trade Organization (WTO) contending that the Section 201 remedy violated global
trade rules. On November 10, 2003, the highest trade court of the WTO issued a Ñnal decision declaring that
the Section 201 tariÅs violated global trade rules.

On December 4, 2003, the President announced his decision to rescind the Section 201 tariÅs. At the
same time the Bush administration noted, however, that the government will continue the steel import
licensing and monitoring program in order to respond quickly to future import surges that unfairly damage the
industry.
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Environmental Matters

Our operations are subject to a broad range of laws and regulations relating to the protection of human
health and the environment. The prior owners of our facilities expended in the past, and we expect to expend
in the future, substantial amounts to achieve or maintain ongoing compliance with federal, state, and local
laws and regulations, including the Clean Air Act, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA),
and the Clean Water Act. These environmental expenditures are not projected to have a material adverse
eÅect on our consolidated Ñnancial position or on our competitive position with respect to other similarly
situated domestic steelmakers subject to the same environmental requirements.

RCRA and Other Remediation Requirements

Under RCRA and similar state programs, the owners of certain facilities that manage hazardous wastes
are required to investigate and, if appropriate, remediate historic environmental contamination found at the
facility. All our major operating and inactive facilities are or may be subject to a corrective action program or
other laws and regulations relating to environmental remediation, including projects relating to the reclama-
tion of industrial properties, also known as brownÑeld projects.

At our properties in Lackawanna, New York, a RCRA Facility Investigation (RFI) is nearing
completion. A report will be submitted to U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the New York
State Department of Environmental Conservation for approval. We anticipate performing a Corrective
Measures Study (CMS) and then implementing likely required corrective measures. We have estimated that
the cost of performing anticipated remediation and post remediation activities will be $72 million and will be
completed over a period of 15 years or more.

Bethlehem, the U.S. EPA and the Maryland Department of the Environment agreed to a phased RFI as
part of a comprehensive multimedia pollution consent decree with respect to our Sparrows Point, Maryland
facility, which was entered by the U.S. District Court for Maryland on October 8, 1997. We have assumed
Bethlehem's ongoing obligations under the consent decree. The consent decree requires us to address
compliance, closure and post-closure care matters and implement corrective measures associated with two
onsite landÑlls (Grays LandÑll and Coke Point LandÑll), perform a site-wide investigation required by
Section 3008(h) of RCRA, continue the operation and maintenance of a remediation system at an idle rod
and wire mill, and address several pollution prevention items such as reducing the generation of iron kish, and
recycling blast furnace water treatment slurry and an onsite wastewater treatment plant sludge. The potential
costs, as well as the time frame for the complete implementation of possible remediation activities at Sparrows
Point, cannot be reasonably estimated until more of the investigations required by the decree have been
completed and the data analyzed. Notwithstanding the above, it is likely based on currently available data that
remediation will be required at the former coke plant. In addition, pursuant to the order of the U.S. District
Court for Maryland, we must also implement corrective measures at the Gray's LandÑll, Coke Point LandÑll,
and post-closure care at the former Rod and Wire Mill Area. The total cost of these related matters is
estimated to be approximately $43 million.

We are required to prevent acid mine drainage from discharging to surface waters at idled mining
operations in western Pennsylvania. We entered into a Consent Order and Agreement with Pennsylvania
Department of Environmental Protection (PaDEP) in May 2003 addressing the transfer of required permits
from Bethlehem to us and Ñnancial assurance for long-term operation and maintenance of the wastewater
treatment facilities associated with these mines. In accordance with this Consent Order and Agreement, we
submitted an operational improvement plan to improve treatment facility operations and lower long-term
wastewater treatment costs. The Consent Order and Agreement required us to propose a long-term Ñnancial
assurance mechanism. A conceptual proposal was submitted to PaDEP in September 2003 and updated in
December 2003. We are awaiting a Ñnal response. As an interim measure, the Consent Order and Agreement
required us in June 2003 to deposit an initial $1 million into an escrow account. We will pay $150,000 monthly
into an escrow account until a Ñnal Ñnancial assurance mechanism is established. The total costs related to
these matters is estimated to be approximately $32 million.
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We own a large former integrated steelmaking site in Johnstown, Pennsylvania. The site has been razed
and there are a number of historic waste disposal facilities located at the site that are subject to regulation by
PaDEP. There are also historic operating locations at the Johnstown site that may have caused groundwater
contamination. Although potentially subject to RCRA corrective action or similar state authority, no
comprehensive environmental investigations have been performed at this site to date. We estimate the costs
associated with future investigations and likely remediation at this facility that can be estimated to be
approximately $23 million.

Our facility at Indiana Harbor, Indiana is subject to a U.S. EPA 3013 Administrative Order requiring
development of a monitoring program to assess soil and groundwater conditions associated with 14 solid waste
management units. The order was received on June 30, 2003 and requires submission of an investigation plan
to U.S. EPA for approval. The plan was submitted to the U.S. EPA in November 2003. Although localized
remediation activities have been conducted at this facility, additional remediation may be required after the
investigation of these solid waste management units has been completed. It is not possible to estimate the cost
of any required remediation or monitoring that may result from this investigation at this time. An area of
subsurface fuel oil contamination exists and is currently the subject of remediation actions. A solid waste
landÑll at Indiana Harbor will require closure and post-closure care. The total cost related to these matters
that can be estimated is approximately $22 million.

At our Burns Harbor, Indiana facility, an RFI was completed in accordance with a U.S. EPA approved
work plan. Based on the results of the investigation, we do not believe there will be any substantial remediation
required to complete the corrective action process at the facility; however, it is likely that we will incur future
costs primarily related to long term post-closure monitoring. In addition, Bethlehem managed approximately
one million net tons of air pollution control dusts and sludges in piles on the ground at the Burns Harbor site.
While an alternative means of handling this material continues to be evaluated, it is likely that we will incur
future costs to manage this material. We also have a continuing obligation pursuant to a consent order issued
by the U.S. District Court in Indiana to operate a collection and treatment system to control contaminated
groundwater seeps from the face of a sea wall at the site. The total costs related to these matters is estimated
to be approximately $22 million.

Our Cleveland, Ohio facilities may be subject to RCRA corrective action or remediation under other
environmental statutes. An integrated steel facility has operated on the property since the early part of the
20th century. As a result, soil and groundwater contamination may exist that might require remediation
pursuant to the RCRA corrective action program or similar state programs. No RCRA corrective action has
been demanded at any of the Cleveland facilities by either federal or state authorities and no comprehensive
investigation of any of the facilities has been performed. However, certain limited and localized remediation
activities have been or will be conducted at these sites. These remediation activities include a large permitted
solid waste landÑll at the site that will require closure and post-closure in the future. The cost of closure and
post-closure care for this landÑll is estimated to be approximately $14 million.

At our site of the former steel making facilities in Bethlehem, Pennsylvania, a remedial investigation is
being performed pursuant to the Pennsylvania Land Recycling (BrownÑeld) Program in conjunction with
comprehensive redevelopment plans. These investigations are continuing to be performed with input and
oversight from both the PaDEP, and the EPA Region III corrective action staÅ to ensure that the actions
taken are acceptable to both state and federal regulatory authorities. The majority of the site is subject to a
real estate sales agreement under which the buyer will assume responsibility for environmental remediation,
which we estimate to be about $13 million.

Our facility at Riverdale, Illinois may be subject to RCRA corrective action or remediation under other
environmental statutes. The facility has been operated as an integrated steel facility since the early part of the
20th century. As a result, soil and groundwater contamination may exist that might require remediation
pursuant to the RCRA corrective action program or similar state programs. Certain localized remediation
activities have been conducted at this facility; however, there is no present federal or state demand for a
RCRA corrective action program at the facility. No comprehensive environmental investigation of the facility
has been performed. In January 2004, the State of Illinois Ñled a proceeding alleging that ISG arranged for the
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transport of slag waste to an oÅ-site location without performing the necessary testing and notiÑcation to the
Illinois Environmental Protection Agency and the owner of the land to which the material was sent. ISG is
evaluating the allegation. The State of Illinois may seek civil penalties and injunctive relief, which are not
expected to be material.

Clean Air Act

Our facilities are subject to a variety of permitting requirements under the Clean Air Act, which restricts
the type and amount of air pollutants that may be emitted from regulated emission sources. On February 28,
2003, the U.S. EPA issued a Ñnal rule to reduce hazardous air pollutant (HAP) emissions from integrated
iron and steel manufacturing facilities. The Ñnal rule will require aÅected facilities to meet standards reÖecting
the application of maximum achievable control technology (MACT) standards. Many of our facilities are
subject to the new MACT standards, and compliance with such standards will be required by May 20, 2006.
We anticipate installing controls at facilities to comply with the new MACT standards with capital
expenditures of about $90 million through 2007.

Other Clean Air Act requirements, such as revisions to national ambient air quality standards for ozone
and particulate matter, may have signiÑcant impacts on us in the future, although whether and how we will be
aÅected will not be determined for many years. We may also be aÅected if the federal government or the
states in which we operate begin to regulate emissions of greenhouse gases such as carbon dioxide. However,
because we cannot predict what requirements will be imposed on us or the timing of such requirements, we are
unable to evaluate the ultimate cost of compliance with respect to these potential developments.

The U.S. EPA has alleged that an acid fume scrubber at our Indiana Harbor facility was not operated in
compliance with federal hazardous air pollutant standards for HCL emissions at the time we restarted the
plant. We have tentatively agreed to enter into a settlement with the U.S. EPA with respect to this matter that
would require us to pay a penalty of about $43,000 and to undertake a supplemental environmental project in
lieu of additional penalties with an estimated cost of about $112,000. The supplemental project is underway
and will be completed by December 15, 2004.

On July 8, 2003 the Indiana Department of Environmental Management (IDEM) issued a notice of
violation to the Indiana Harbor plant. The notice of violation alleges that the H3 and H4 blast furnaces
violated speciÑed opacity limitations on January 2, 2003 and April 2, 2003, respectively. The notice of
violation also alleges operations at the basic oxygen furnace exceeded fugitive emission and that on May 14,
2003 the basic oxygen furnace roof monitor exceeded an opacity standard. We expect to discuss the notice of
violation with the IDEM. IDEM may attempt to impose a penalty on us in regard to these allegations, which
is not expected to be material.

Clean Water Act

Our facilities also are subject to a variety of permitting requirements under the Clean Water Act, which
restricts the type and amount of pollutants that may be discharged from regulatory sources into receiving
bodies of waters, such as rivers, lakes and oceans. On October 17, 2002, the U.S. EPA issued regulations that
will require existing wastewater dischargers to comply with new eÉuent limitations. Several of our facilities
are subject to the new regulations, and compliance with such regulations will be required as new discharge
permits are issued for continued operation.

The Circuit Court for Baltimore County, Maryland entered into a consent decree in March 2001, which
requires the installation of improvements to Sparrow Point's wastewater treatment plant. The improvements
are underway and we expect to spend about $16 million to complete the improvements in 2004.

The U.S. EPA has alleged, among other things, that water discharged from a wastewater lagoon at the
Indiana Harbor facility is not permitted pursuant to the facility's national pollution discharge elimination
system (NPDES) permit. It is our position that this discharge is authorized by the NPDES permit. As a
result of a meeting with the U.S. EPA on February 5, 2004, ISG believes that most of the U.S. EPA's
concerns have been resolved.
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Other

We anticipate spending approximately $48 million over 40 years, including $4 million in 2004, to address
the removal and disposal of PCB equipment and asbestos material utilized in operations applications at our
facilities.

There are a number of other facilities and properties, which ISG owns across the United States which
may present incidental environmental liabilities. The estimated cost of future investigations and likely
remediation at these sites is estimated to be about $16 million.

Intellectual Property

We own a number of U.S. and foreign patents that relate to a wide variety of products and processes, have
Ñled pending patent applications and are licensed under a number of patents. However, we believe no single
patent or license or group or patents or licenses is of material importance to our overall business. We also own
registered trademarks for certain of our products and service marks for certain of our services, which, unlike
patents and licenses, are renewable so long as they are continued in use and properly protected.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

ISG and its representatives may from time to time make forward-looking statements in reports Ñled with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, reports to stockholders, press releases, other written documents and
oral presentations. These forward-looking statements may be identiÑed by the use of predictive, future-tense
or forward-looking terminology, such as ""believes,'' ""anticipates,'' ""expects,'' ""estimates,'' ""intends,'' ""may,''
""will'' or similar terms. These statements speak only as of the date of such statements and ISG will undertake
no ongoing obligation, other than that imposed by law, to update these statements. These statements appear in
a number of places in this report and include statements regarding ISG's intent, belief or current expectations
of its directors, oÇcers or advisors with respect to, among other things:

‚ trends aÅecting ISG's Ñnancial condition, results of operations or future prospects;

‚ business and growth strategies;

‚ operating culture and philosophy;

‚ Ñnancing plans and forecasts; and

‚ the ongoing integration of the Bethlehem assets into our business.

Any such forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve signiÑcant
risks and uncertainties, and that actual results may diÅer materially from those contained in the forward-
looking statements as a result of various factors, some of which are unknown. The factors that could adversely
aÅect ISG's actual results and performance include, without limitation:

‚ negative overall economic conditions or conditions in the markets served;

‚ competition within the steel industry;

‚ changes in U.S. or foreign trade policy aÅecting steel imports or exports;

‚ changes in foreign currencies aÅecting the strength of the U.S. dollar;

‚ actions by domestic and foreign competitors;

‚ the inability to achieve our anticipated growth objectives;

‚ changes in availability or cost of raw materials, energy or other supplies;

‚ labor issues aÅecting ISG's workforce or the steel industry generally; and

‚ the inability to implement our operating culture and philosophy at the acquired facilities.
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Factors that could aÅect our results or performance include the following:

Risks Related to the Steel Industry

Excess global capacity and the availability of competitive substitute materials has resulted in intense

competition and may exert further downward pressure on prices.

Competition within the steel industry, both domestic and worldwide, is intense and is expected to remain
so. We compete primarily on the basis of price, quality and the ability to meet customers' product needs and
delivery schedules. Our primary competitors are other integrated steel producers and mini-mills, some of
which are larger than we are and some of which have substantially greater capital resources than we do. The
highly competitive nature of the steel industry periodically exerts downward pressure on prices for our
products. In the case of certain product applications, we and other steel manufacturers compete with
manufacturers of other materials, including plastic, aluminum, graphite composites, ceramics, glass, wood and
concrete. In addition, global overcapacity in steel manufacturing and its negative impact on domestic steel
prices are likely to persist and could adversely aÅect our sales, margins and proÑtability. This overcapacity has
resulted in high levels of steel imports into the United States, exerted downward pressure on domestic steel
prices and resulted in, at times, a dramatic reduction in, or, in the case of many steel producers, the
elimination of gross margins.

Increased imports of steel into the United States could adversely impact domestic steel prices, which

could adversely aÅect our sales, margins and proÑtability.

Based on American Iron and Steel Institute apparent steel supply (excluding semi-Ñnished products),
imports of steel into the United States constituted 20.4%, 20.2% and 22.3% of the domestic steel market
supply for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. SigniÑcant imports of steel into the United States has at times
exerted downward pressure on domestic steel prices and substantially reduce sales, margins and proÑtability.
We and other domestic steel producers compete with many foreign producers. We face strong competition
from foreign producers, and competition has greatly increased in recent years as a result of an excess of foreign
steelmaking capacity. Furthermore, a weakening of certain foreign economies, particularly in Eastern Europe,
Asia and Latin America, has at times resulted in lower local demand for steel products and greater steel
exports to the United States at depressed prices.

The U.S. government established various protective actions during 2001 and 2002, including the
enactment of various steel import quotas and tariÅs, which contributed to a decrease of some steel imports
during 2002. However, on December 4, 2003, these steel import quotas and tariÅs were lifted. At this time it is
uncertain what impact the lifting of these measures will have on the domestic steel industry over time, but
there is a risk that the removal of these measures will lead to a resurgence of steel imports and result in
downward pressure on domestic steel prices and negatively impact our sales, margins and proÑtability.

Our level of production and our sales and earnings are subject to signiÑcant Öuctuations as a result of

the cyclical nature of the industries we serve.

The price of steel and steel products may Öuctuate signiÑcantly due to many factors beyond our control.
This Öuctuation directly aÅects the levels of production and sales and earnings. The domestic steel industry
has been highly cyclical in nature, inÖuenced by a combination of factors, including periods of economic
growth or recession, strength or weakness of the U.S. dollar, worldwide production capacity, levels of steel
imports and applicable tariÅs. The demand for steel products is generally aÅected by macroeconomic
Öuctuations in the United States and the global economies in which steel companies sell their products. For
example, future economic downturns, stagnant economies or currency Öuctuations in the United States or
globally could decrease the demand for products or increase the amount of imports of steel into the United
States, which could negatively impact our sales, margins and proÑtability.

A prolonged weakness in the U.S. automotive industry would reduce the demand for our products and
could reduce our sales. A signiÑcant portion of our sales are currently sold directly to automotive customers
and to intermediate steel processor and service center markets where some of our products are further
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processed and resold to various companies in the automotive industry. The cyclical nature of the automotive
industry is caused by factors such as the level of consumer spending, the strength or weakness of the
U.S. dollar and the impact of international trade and various other factors, including labor unrest and the
availability of raw materials, which aÅect the ability of the automotive industry to build cars. Any decrease in
automotive manufacturing will reduce our shipments, increase our operating costs and reduce our earnings. In
addition, if automobile manufacturers choose to substitute steel with more plastics, aluminum and other steel
substitutes in their automobiles, it could further reduce demand for our products.

In addition, a disruption or downturn in the oil and gas, gas transmission, construction, commercial
equipment, rail transportation, appliance, agricultural and durable goods industries, all of which are signiÑcant
markets for our products and are highly cyclical, could negatively impact our sales volumes, pricing, margins
and earnings.

Risks Related to Our Business

Because of our limited operating history, and our recent acquisitions of various steelmaking assets, we

believe that historical information regarding the acquired assets is of limited relevance in understanding

our business as currently conducted and our prospects for the future.

We have a limited operating history. We did not have any operations until we consummated our
acquisition of the idled steelmaking assets of LTV in April 2002 and we did not begin producing steel until
May 2002. We completed the acquisition of the idled steelmaking assets of Acme in October 2002 and did not
generate signiÑcant revenues from those assets during 2002. We completed the acquisition of the Bethlehem
steelmaking assets in May 2003. As a result, we believe the historical Ñnancial results of the acquired assets
are of limited relevance in understanding our business as currently conducted.

We may not be able to integrate eÅectively our new employees and the operations of the various assets

we acquired or achieve the level of eÇciencies we intend.

We are subject to the risks, expenses, uncertainties and problems encountered by companies in the early
stages of operations and associated with the integration of new businesses. Our workforce may not be able to
readily adapt to the new work rules, job consolidations, software systems and unique business culture of the
combined companies. The dramatic changes in individual responsibilities, communication structure and
software systems may result in operating ineÇciencies and increased expenses until the changes are fully
incorporated into our workforce's daily routines. Additionally, the expansion of duties may require additional
training and skill development before we realize the full extent of the planned eÇciencies.

We may not be able to realize the anticipated federal income tax beneÑts of acquiring the Bethlehem

assets.

Our acquisition of the Bethlehem assets was structured for federal income tax purposes to allow us to
acquire the historical tax attributes of Bethlehem's assets and net operating loss carryforwards subject to
certain limitations. We have not, however, obtained a ruling from the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) nor
have we undergone an IRS examination. If we do not meet certain proÑtability thresholds, we will not be able
to realize the expected federal income tax savings related to Bethlehem's net operating loss carryforwards and
depreciable basis of plant and equipment.

Our business requires substantial capital investment and maintenance expenditures, which we may be

unable to provide.

Our business strategy will require additional substantial capital investment. We require capital for, among
other purposes, managing acquired assets, acquiring new equipment, maintaining the condition of our existing
equipment, completing future acquisitions and maintaining compliance with environmental laws and regula-
tions. To the extent that cash generated internally and cash available under our credit facilities is not suÇcient
to fund capital requirements, we will require additional debt and/or equity Ñnancing. However, this type of
Ñnancing may not be available or, if available, may not be on satisfactory terms. Future debt Ñnancings, if
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available, may result in increased interest and amortization expense, increased leverage and decreased income
available to fund further acquisitions and expansion. In addition, future debt Ñnancings may limit our ability to
withstand competitive pressures and render us more vulnerable to economic downturns. If we fail to generate
or obtain suÇcient additional capital in the future, we could be forced to reduce or delay capital expenditures
and acquisitions, sell assets or restructure or reÑnance our indebtedness.

Unexpected equipment failures may lead to production curtailments or shutdowns.

Interruptions in production capabilities will inevitably increase production costs and reduce our sales and
earnings. In addition to equipment failures, our facilities are also subject to the risk of catastrophic loss due to
unanticipated events such as Ñres, explosions or adverse weather conditions. Our manufacturing processes
depend on critical pieces of steelmaking equipment, such as furnaces, continuous casters and rolling
equipment, as well as electrical equipment, such as transformers, and this equipment may, on occasion, be out
of service as a result of unanticipated failures. In the future, we may experience material plant shutdowns or
periods of reduced production as a result of any equipment failures. Furthermore, any interruption in
production capability may require us to make large capital expenditures to remedy the situation, which could
have a negative eÅect on our proÑtability and cash Öows. Although we maintain business interruption
insurance, any recovery under this insurance policy may not oÅset the lost revenues or increased costs that we
experience during the disruption of our operations. In addition to the revenue losses, which may not be
recoverable under the policy, longer-term business disruption could result in a loss of customers. If this were to
occur, our future sales levels, and therefore our proÑtability, could be adversely aÅected.

Environmental regulations impose substantial costs and limitations on operations.

We have environmental liability risks and limitations on operations brought about by the requirements of
environmental laws and regulations. We are subject to various federal, state and local environmental, health
and safety laws and regulations concerning issues such as air emissions, wastewater discharges, solid and
hazardous waste management and disposal and the investigation and remediation of contamination. These
laws and regulations are becoming increasingly stringent. While we believe that our facilities are in material
compliance with all applicable environmental laws and regulations, the risks of substantial unanticipated costs
and liabilities related to compliance with these laws and regulations are an inherent part of our business. It is
possible that future conditions may develop, arise or be discovered that create new environmental compliance
or remediation liabilities and costs. While we believe that we can comply with environmental legislation and
regulatory requirements and that the costs of compliance have been included within budgeted cost estimates,
compliance may prove to be more limiting and costly than anticipated. We may also be subject from time to
time to legal proceedings brought by private parties or governmental agencies with respect to environmental
matters, including matters involving alleged property damage or personal injury. We may also be subject to
future claims with respect to historic asbestos exposure relating to our acquired assets. While management
estimates that the risk of incurring liability as the result of any such claims is remote, it is impossible to
estimate at this time.

Any decrease in the availability, or increase in the cost, of raw materials and energy could materially

aÅect our earnings.

Our operations depend heavily on the availability of various raw materials and energy resources, including
iron ore, coke, scrap, electricity and natural gas. The availability of raw materials and energy resources may
decrease and their prices are likely to be volatile as a result of, among other things, changes in overall supply
and demand levels and new laws or regulations. Disruption in the supply of our raw materials or energy
resources could temporarily impair our ability to manufacture some of our products or require us to pay higher
prices in order to obtain these raw materials or energy resources from other sources. In the event our raw
material and energy costs increase, we may not be able to pass these higher costs on to our customers in full or
at all. Any increase in the prices for raw materials or energy resources could materially increase our costs and
therefore lower our earnings.
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We currently obtain all our iron ore pellet needs for our Cleveland and Indiana Harbor facilities from one
supplier, Cleveland-CliÅs Inc, pursuant to a long-term supply contract. Additionally, as part of the Bethlehem
asset acquisition, we acquired a 62.3% interest in Hibbing Taconite. Excluding tonnage applicable to interests
owned by others, Hibbing Taconite is estimated to contain recoverable reserves at December 31, 2003
suÇcient to produce at least 140 million net tons of iron ore pellets. This mine is operated by Cleveland-CliÅs
Inc, which also owns 23% of the mine. Hibbing Taconite has mining and processing facilities, which can
supply a majority of our current annual iron ore requirements for Burns Harbor. We expect these two sources
will supply approximately 90% of our iron ore pellet needs in 2004. Should Cleveland-CliÅs Inc or the Hibbing
Taconite mine be unable to meet our iron ore pellet needs, or should the Cleveland-CliÅs Inc contract be
terminated, we may be unable to meet our iron ore pellet needs or may be forced to obtain iron ore pellets at
higher prices.

Both the domestic and foreign supply of coke has decreased signiÑcantly over the last decade as coke
suppliers have ceased operations primarily due to age of facilities and environmental issues. Global demand for
coke is higher due to increased global steel demand. These supply and demand dynamics have supported
higher global coke costs, which have surged in early 2004. In addition to the coke we produce in our coke
facilities, which amounts to about 42% of our estimated needs in 2004, we have contracts for the purchase of
about 25% of our estimated future coke requirements through 2005. However, adequate supplies of coke may
not be available to us in the future, or, if available, only at higher prices than the prices we currently pay. If we
are unable to obtain an adequate supply of coke in the future we would have to use alternative and more costly
sources of energy or reduce production, both of which actions would have a negative impact on our earnings
and cash Öow.

All our furnaces are equipped to burn natural gas or utilize electric power, which are the primary energy
sources used at our manufacturing facilities. Backup systems are in place at most facilities to permit the use of
fuel oil or propane should that become necessary. Prices for natural gas and electricity have Öuctuated in
recent years. Energy prices, particularly for natural gas and fuel oil, were recently at historically high levels,
which increased our production costs. Although we continue to evaluate our energy costs and consider ways to
factor energy costs into our pricing, energy prices may increase further, which could adversely aÅect our
production costs, competitive position and results of operations. A substantial and prolonged increase in energy
costs would have an adverse eÅect on our margins, earnings and cash Öow.

A signiÑcant portion of our Öat-rolled products are currently sold on the spot market, and therefore, our

sales, margins and earnings are negatively aÅected by decreases in domestic spot Öat-rolled steel prices.

Because a signiÑcant portion of our Öat-rolled products are sold on the spot market under contracts with
terms of 12 months or less, our sales, margins and earnings are negatively impacted by decreases in domestic
Öat-rolled steel prices. As a result, downturns in the domestic Öat-rolled steel market could have an adverse
eÅect on our sales, margins and earnings.

Our level of indebtedness and other demands on our cash resources could materially adversely aÅect our

ability to execute our business strategy and make us more vulnerable to economic downturns.

As of December 31, 2003, we had liquidity of $432.7 million, consisting of cash and cash equivalents of
$193.6 million and available borrowing capacity of $239.1 million under our revolving credit facility, and total
consolidated debt, including current maturities and capital lease obligations, of approximately $622.3 million.
During the 12 months after December 31, 2003, our anticipated principal repayments will be approximately
$46.8 million. Subject to the limits contained in our credit facilities, we may also incur additional debt in the
future. In addition to the principal repayments on our outstanding debt, we have other demands on our cash
resources, including, among others, capital expenditures and operating expenses.
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Our level of indebtedness and the signiÑcant debt servicing costs associated with that indebtedness could
have material eÅects on our operations and our ability to execute our business strategy. For example, they
could:

‚ require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash Öow from operations to payments on our debt,
thereby reducing the amount of our cash Öow available for working capital, capital expenditures,
payments of dividends on our common stock, acquisitions and other general corporate purposes;

‚ require us to raise additional capital through the issuance of equity, which may have a dilutive impact
to existing stockholders;

‚ limit our Öexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in the industries in which we compete;

‚ place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors, some of which have less debt
service obligations and greater Ñnancial resources than we do;

‚ limit our ability to borrow additional funds;

‚ increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions; and

‚ result in our failure to satisfy the Ñnancial covenants contained in our credit facilities or in other
agreements governing our indebtedness, which could result in an event of default that, if not cured or
waived, could restrict or eliminate our ability to Ñnance the cash requirements of our business.

Our credit facilities are secured by substantially all our material assets. If we default under these
facilities, the lenders could choose to declare all outstanding amounts immediately due and payable, and seek
foreclosure of the assets we granted to them as collateral. If the amounts outstanding under the credit facilities
were accelerated, we may not have suÇcient resources to repay all outstanding amounts, and our assets may
not be suÇcient to repay all of our outstanding debt in full. Foreclosures on any of our material assets could
disrupt our operations, and have a material adverse eÅect on our reputation, production volume, sales and
earnings.

Our variable rate indebtedness subjects us to interest rate risk, which could cause our annual debt service

obligations to increase signiÑcantly.

Some of our borrowings, including borrowings under our credit facilities, are at variable rates of interest
and expose us to interest rate risk. If interest rates increase, our debt service obligations on our variable rate
indebtedness would increase even if the amount borrowed remained the same, resulting in a decrease in our
net income.

Our ability and the ability of some of our subsidiaries to engage in some business transactions may be

limited by the terms of our debt.

Our credit facilities contain a number of Ñnancial covenants requiring us to meet Ñnancial ratios and
Ñnancial condition tests, as well as covenants restricting our ability to:

‚ incur additional debt;

‚ in the case of ISG only, pay dividends on, redeem or repurchase capital stock;

‚ allow our subsidiaries to issue new stock to any person other than us or any of our other subsidiaries;

‚ make investments;

‚ incur or permit to exist liens;

‚ enter into transactions with aÇliates;

‚ guarantee the debt of other entities, including joint ventures;

17



‚ merge or consolidate or otherwise combine with another company; and

‚ transfer or sell our assets.

Our ability to borrow under our credit facilities will depend upon our ability to comply with these
covenants and our borrowing base requirements. Our ability to meet these covenants and requirements may be
aÅected by events beyond our control and we may not meet these obligations. Our failure to comply with these
covenants and requirements could result in an event of default under our credit facilities that, if not cured or
waived, could terminate our ability to borrow further, permit acceleration of the relevant debt and permit
foreclosure on any collateral granted as security under our credit facilities.

Senior management may be diÇcult to replace if they leave.

The loss of the services of one or more members of our senior management team or the inability to
attract, retain and maintain additional senior management personnel could harm our business, Ñnancial
condition, results of operations and future prospects. Our operations and prospects depend in large part on the
performance of our senior management team, including our chief executive oÇcer, Rodney B. Mott, our chief
operating oÇcer, V. John Goodwin, and the other members of the senior management team. We may not be
able to Ñnd qualiÑed replacements for any of these individuals if their services are no longer available. There is
key man insurance only on Mr. Mott.

Implementation of our strategy to pursue additional acquisition opportunities has certain risks.

We intend to continue to pursue value-adding acquisition opportunities in the steel industry, including our
proposed acquisition of substantially all the assets of Weirton. As part of this strategy, we may expand existing
facilities, build additional plants, acquire other steel assets, enter into joint ventures or form strategic alliances
that we believe will expand or complement our existing business. These transactions will likely involve some or
all of the following risks:

‚ the potential disruption of our ongoing business;

‚ the diversion of resources and management's time;

‚ the inability of management to maintain uniform standards, controls, procedures and policies;

‚ the diÇculty of managing the operations of a larger company;

‚ the risk of becoming involved in labor, commercial or regulatory disputes or litigation related to the
new enterprise;

‚ the risk of contractual or operational liability to joint venture participants or to third parties as a result
of our participation;

‚ the diÇculty of competing for acquisitions and other growth opportunities with companies having
greater Ñnancial resources than us; and

‚ the diÇculty of integrating the acquired operations and personnel into our existing business.

Pursuing our growth strategy may be required for us to remain competitive, but we may not be able to
complete any such transactions or obtain Ñnancing, if necessary, for such transactions on favorable terms.
Future transactions may not improve the competitive position and business prospects as anticipated, and could
reduce sales or proÑt margins, and, therefore, earnings if they are not successful.
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Risks Related to our Common Stock

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents and Delaware corporate law may make it diÇcult for

our stockholders to replace or remove our current board of directors and could deter or delay third

parties from acquiring us, which may adversely aÅect the marketability and market price of our common

stock.

Provisions in our certiÑcate of incorporation and bylaws and in Delaware corporate law may make it
diÇcult for stockholders to change the composition of our board of directors in any one year, and thus prevent
them from changing the composition of management. In addition, the same provisions may make it diÇcult
and expensive for a third party to pursue a tender oÅer, change in control or takeover attempt that is opposed
by our management and board of directors. Public stockholders who might desire to participate in this type of
transaction may not have an opportunity to do so. These anti-takeover provisions could substantially impede
the ability of public stockholders to beneÑt from a change in control or change our management and board of
directors and, as a result, may adversely aÅect the marketability and market price of our common stock.

There may be circumstances in which the interests of our major stockholders could be in conÖict with

your interests as a stockholder.

Circumstances may occur in which major investors in ISG may have an interest in pursuing acquisitions,
divestitures or other transactions, including, among other things, taking advantage of certain corporate
opportunities that, in their judgment, could enhance their investment in us or another company in which they
invest. These transactions might involve risks to our other holders of common stock or adversely aÅect us or
other investors. We may from time to time engage in transactions with related parties and aÇliates that
include, among other things, business arrangements, lease arrangements for certain manufacturing facilities
and oÇces and the payment of fees or commissions for the transfer of manufacturing by one operating
company to another. These transactions, if any, may adversely aÅect our sales volumes, margins, and earnings.

We may not pay dividends for the foreseeable future.

We may retain any future earnings to support the development and expansion of our business or make
additional payments under our credit facilities and, as a result, we may not pay cash dividends in the
foreseeable future. Our payment of any future dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors after
taking into account various factors, including our Ñnancial condition, operating results, cash needs, growth
plans and the terms of any credit agreements that we may be a party to at the time. Our credit facilities limit
us from paying cash dividends or other payments or distributions with respect to our capital stock in excess of
certain limitations. In addition, the terms of any future credit agreement may contain similar restrictions on
our ability to pay any dividends or make any distributions or payments with respect to our capital stock.
Accordingly, investors must rely on sales of their common stock after price appreciation, which may never
occur, as the only way to realize their investment.

Item 2. Properties

Principal Operating Facilities

We are the second largest integrated steel producer in North America based on raw steelmaking
capability. Our steel operations consist of four integrated steelmaking plants, one basic oxygen fur-
nace/compact strip mill, two electric arc furnace plants and four Ñnishing plants. We also own interests in
various joint ventures that support these facilities, as well as numerous railroad and transportation assets.

Integrated Steelmaking Facilities

Burns Harbor. Our Burns Harbor facility is located on approximately 3,300 acres in Indiana on Lake
Michigan, about 50 miles southeast of Chicago, Illinois, strategically located near many of our customers.
Burns Harbor, which is the newest integrated steel making facility in the United States, is capable of
producing hot-rolled sheet, cold-rolled sheet, corrosion resistant coated sheet and steel plates for use in
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construction, machinery, automotive, oil and gas and shipbuilding applications. Burns Harbor's principal
facilities include a sintering plant, two coke oven batteries (one of which is under a capital lease), two blast
furnaces (including coal injection facilities), which yield 4.8 million net tons of hot metal per year, three basic
oxygen furnaces, which each can make approximately 300 net tons of liquid steel in 30 minutes, a vacuum
degassing facility, two continuous slab casters that produce internally clean steel with highly consistent
chemistry (with a combined annual raw steel production capability of about 4.7 million net tons), an 80-inch
hot-strip mill, two continuous pickling lines, an 80-inch Ñve-stand cold-rolling mill, sheet Ñnishing mills, a
continuous heat treating line, batch annealing facilities, a 72-inch hot-dip galvanizing line, which is capable of
making both galvanized and galvannealed sheets, the currently idled 110-inch plate mill (including two
continuous reheat furnaces, a roughing mill, a Ñnishing mill and a normalizing furnace), which can roll plates
from 3/16 to 1-inch thick, and a 160-inch shared plate mill (including two continuous reheat furnaces, four
batch reheat furnaces, a roughing mill, a Ñnishing mill, an in-line accelerated cooling facility, a quench and
temper line and a batch normalizing furnace), which can roll plates up to 15 inches thick. Burns Harbor
continuously casts 100% of its raw steel production volume.

Indiana Harbor. Our Indiana Harbor facility is located on approximately 1,200 acres in Indiana,
20 miles southeast of Chicago, Illinois on Lake Michigan, strategically located near many of our customers.
Indiana Harbor's customer base includes the automotive, agricultural, appliance, pipemaking and service
center markets. Among its products are hot-rolled sheet, carbon and high-strength, processed and un-
processed; cold-rolled sheet, carbon and high-strength, enameling sheet, annealed cold-rolled and corrosion
resistant coated products. Indiana Harbor's major facilities include a sintering plant and two blast furnaces
that have a capability to produce approximately 3.6 million net tons of hot metal per year. Indiana Harbor also
has two basic oxygen furnaces, a ladle metallurgy facility, a vacuum degasser facility, two continuous slab
casters (with annual raw steel production capability of about 4.0 million ton per year), three pusher reheat
furnaces and an 84-inch hot-strip mill. Indiana Harbor's Ñnishing facilities consist of a pickle line, an 80-inch
Ñve-stand tandem mill, two hot-dip galvanizing lines, batch annealing, a two-stand temper mill and various
slitting, recoil and inspection lines.

Cleveland. Our Cleveland facilities are located on approximately 1,200 acres on opposite banks of the
Cuyahoga River, near Lake Erie in Cleveland, Ohio. Cleveland historically operated as two separate steel
mills Ì Cleveland East and Cleveland West. Although we acquired the entire facility, we have only restarted
operations at Cleveland East. We are considering whether to restart the Cleveland West operations. We
expect to make that decision, which will be based primarily on the price and availability of required raw
materials, over the next few months. References to Cleveland in ""Ì Principal Operating Facilities'' refer only
to the facilities we are operating on the east bank of the Cuyahoga River.

Most of Cleveland's output is hot-rolled or cold-rolled sheet, with approximately 4% electrogalvanized
sheet. The Cleveland blast furnaces are capable of supplying about 3.1 million net tons to two basic oxygen
furnaces. Other major facilities located at Cleveland include a twin strand 9-inch continuous slab caster (with
annual raw steel production capability of about 3.0 million net tons), a ladle metallurgy facility, vacuum
degassing facilities, an 84-inch hot-strip mill, an 84-inch cold reducing mill, a temper mill and a batch anneal
shop. Cleveland is serviced by our regional coke battery, the Warren Coke Battery, which supplies
approximately 40% of Cleveland's coke needs. Cleveland's hot-strip mill, when supplemented with externally
produced slabs, can produce approximately 3.8 million net tons annually. With the integration of the
Bethlehem assets into our business, we believe that Cleveland may receive slabs from the Sparrows Point
facility and thus could be able to optimize production on the hot-strip mill.

Sparrows Point. Our Sparrows Point facility is located on approximately 3,100 acres on the Chesapeake
Bay near Baltimore, Maryland. Sparrows Point is capable of producing 4.0 million net tons annually of slabs,
hot-rolled sheet, cold rolled sheet, coated sheet and tin for use in construction, container, automotive and
strapping applications. Principal facilities include a sintering plant, a large blast furnace with a pulverized coal
injection system, two basic oxygen furnaces, a twin strand continuous slab caster (with annual raw steel
production capability of about 3.9 million net tons), a 68-inch hot-strip mill, a new continuous pickling and
cold reducing mill, two galvanizing lines, two GalvalumeTM lines and tin mill facilities that include tin and
chrome plating lines. Sparrows Point continuously casts 100% of its raw steel production. Sparrows Point's
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location on the Chesapeake Bay makes it the only domestic steel mill with direct ocean access and provides us
with a deep-water port and the capability to ship products and receive raw materials by ship, thereby reducing
our freight costs. Sparrows Point supplies slabs to Burns Harbor and Conshohocken plate facilities and to
other ISG facilities depending on market conditions.

Riverdale. Our Riverdale, Illinois facility is located on 165 acres approximately 14 miles west of our
Indiana Harbor facility. We supply hot metal from our Indiana Harbor and Burns Harbor blast furnaces to
Riverdale's basic oxygen furnaces. Riverdale's major facilities include basic oxygen furnaces; two ladle
metallurgy furnaces, a continuous thin slab caster which uses a compact strip process (with annual raw steel
production capability of about 750,000 net tons), a 62-inch wide tunnel furnace and a seven-stand hot-strip
rolling mill. The Riverdale compact strip mill incorporates the latest casting and rolling technology designs
with state-of-the-art computer-generated features to precisely control the thickness, proÑle and Öatness of our
products.

Electric Arc Furnaces

Coatesville. Our facility located in Coatesville, Pennsylvania consists of an electric arc furnace (with an
annual raw steel production capability of about 900,000 net tons), ingot teeming facilities, a slab caster, two
plate mills (140-inch and 206-inch) and heat treating facilities. This facility reÑnes more than 450 steel
chemistries and together with our Conshohocken facility, process some of the widest, heaviest and thickest
plates in the industry. This facility produces a wide range of carbon and alloy products (carbon plate, high-
strength, low alloy plate, commercial alloy plate, military alloy plate and coiled and cut plate) and special
products (clad plate, re-sulpherized plate, steel plate, Öoor plate and clean steel plate) for use in infrastruc-
ture, chemical process facilities and shipbuilding applications. This facility also provides Ñnishing and
conversion services to key customers.

Steelton. Our facility in Steelton, Pennsylvania consists of an electric arc furnace (with an annual raw
steel production capability of about 1.2 million net tons), a ladle furnace, a vacuum degassing facility, ingot
teeming facilities, a continuous bloom caster, a 44-inch blooming mill, a 28-inch rail mill, in-line rail head-
hardening facilities, Ñnishing and shipping facilities for long-length (80 foot) rails and a 20-inch bar mill. The
Steelton facility primarily produces railroad rails, specialty blooms and Öat bars.

Rolling and Finishing Facilities

Hennepin. Our Hennepin, Illinois Ñnishing facility is located on 861 acres on the Illinois River. It can
produce more than 1.2 million net tons of cold-rolled and galvanized steel products a year from a hot rolled
band substrate. The Hennepin facility's location is well suited to serve the electrical, machinery and appliance
markets, which are predominantly located in the industrial Midwest region of the United States. Additionally,
Hennepin's location on the Illinois River makes it capable of shipping and receiving by barge, thereby
reducing shipping costs. Our Hennepin facility consists of an 84-inch pickle line, an 84-inch Ñve-stand tandem
mill, a batch annealing facility, a temper mill, a hot-dip galvanized line and three processing lines. The Burns
Harbor and Indiana Harbor facilities currently provide substrate to Hennepin.

Columbus Coatings. Our Columbus Coatings facility is located in Columbus, Ohio. It operates a
coating line that produces quality corrosion resistant steel sheets primarily for the exposed and unexposed
automotive market. Our Burns Harbor facility currently provides cold-rolled coils for most of Columbus
Coatings' annual capability and is responsible for marketing of the Ñnished product. We expect to shift some
of the source of that supply to our Cleveland facility in the near future. We also operate a steel slitting and
warehousing facility at our Columbus facility through Columbus Processing Company.

Conshohocken. Our facility in Conshohocken, Pennsylvania consists of a 110-inch Steckel mill, two
reheat furnaces, a roughing mill, an in-line cooling and cut-to-length line, a quench and temper line and batch
heat-treating system. This facility produces a wide range of carbon and alloy coiled and cut plate from slabs
produced at Coatesville and Sparrows Point for use in infrastructure, chemical process facilities and
shipbuilding applications. This facility also provides Ñnishing and conversion services to key customers.
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Lackawanna. We operate a 4-stand tandem mill, an annealing facility, a temper mill, a continuous
pickling line and a galvanizing line in Lackawanna, New York. The galvanizing line produces about
335,000 net tons per year of quality corrosion-resistant steel sheets for the unexposed automotive market. Hot-
rolled steel substrate is supplied principally from our Burns Harbor and Cleveland facilities.

Railroad and Transport

We own the assets of seven short-line railroads, having sold three that were acquired from Bethlehem,
that transport raw materials and semi-Ñnished steel products within our various facilities, and an interstate
truck broker which serves our facilities.

We also operate, under long-term charters, two 1,000-foot self-unloading ore vessels that are used for the
transportation of iron ore on the Great Lakes.

ISG Ì Homer Research Facility

As part of our acquisition of Bethlehem's assets, we acquired the Homer Research Facility, a research
and product development facility in Bethlehem, Pennsylvania. Our research eÅorts are focused on process and
product technologies that will beneÑt our customers' manufacturing operations.

Joint Ventures

Hibbing Taconite. We own a total 62.3% direct and indirect interest in Hibbing Taconite Company
located in Hibbing, Minnesota, that owns iron ore reserves and operates mines and a pelletizing plant. Hibbing
Taconite has mining and processing facilities that can supply all of Burns Harbor's iron ore pellet needs. We
own a 90% interest in Ontario Iron Company, which is located in Hibbing, Minnesota that owns surface, land
and mineral leases used by Hibbing Taconite.

AK-ISG Metal Coatings Co. We own a 40% interest in an electrogalvanizing joint venture facility,
located on the east side of our Cleveland facility.

Double G Coatings Company, L.P. We own a 50% interest in Double G Coatings Company, L.P. or
Double G, which is located near Jackson, Mississippi. This company operates a 270,000-ton-per year sheet
coating line that produces galvanized and GalvalumeTM coated sheets primarily for the construction market.
Sparrows Point provides cold-rolled coils for our share of production and is responsible for marketing its share
of the Ñnished product.

Steel Construction Systems. We own a 45% interest in Steel Construction Systems, which is located in
Orlando, Florida and manufactures steel studs and roll-formed trusses for residential and light commercial
buildings.

Indiana Pickling and Processing Company. We own a 20% interest in Indiana Pickling and Processing
Company, which is located in Portage, Indiana and operates a pickling line.

Bethlehem Roll Technologies LLC. We own a 50% interest in Bethlehem Roll Technologies LLC,
which is located in Sparrows Point, Maryland and operates a facility for grinding steel mill rolls for us and
others.

Chesapeake Heavy Machine Services, L.L.C. We own a 50% interest in Chesapeake Heavy Machine
Services, L.L.C., which is located in Sparrows Point, Maryland and manages and markets the services of a
machine shop.

Burns Harbor Steel Health Resources, L.L.C. We own a 47.5% interest in Steel Health Resources,
L.L.C., which is located in Chesterton, Indiana and operates a healthcare clinic.

We account for all these joint ventures on the equity method except Hibbing Taconite, which is pro-rata
consolidated.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

See ""Environmental Matters'' under ""PART I, Item 1. Business'' of this Annual Report for a discussion
of environmental litigation and governmental proceedings.

In the ordinary course of business, we are involved in various pending or threatened legal proceedings. We
cannot predict with certainty the outcome of any legal or environmental proceedings to which we are a party.
In our opinion, however, adequate liabilities have been recorded for losses that are probable to result from
legal proceedings and environmental remediation requirements. If such liabilities prove to be inadequate,
however, it is reasonably possible that we could be required to record a charge to earnings that could be
material to the results of operations in a particular future quarterly or annual period. We believe that any
ultimate additional liability arising from these actions, that is reasonably possible over what has been recorded,
will not be material to our consolidated Ñnancial condition and suÇcient liquidity will be available for required
payments.

As described elsewhere, we purchased only speciÑed assets of Bethlehem, Acme and LTV through sales
in bankruptcy proceedings. The sellers in those transactions retained liability for certain claims related to the
assets that we purchased, including personal injury claims. The sale orders issued by the U.S. Bankruptcy
Courts having jurisdiction over each respective transaction entered orders barring assertion of claims (other
than those in respect of certain speciÑcally assumed liabilities which did not include asbestos-related
liabilities), against us related to the assets in question, and conÑrming that neither we nor our subsidiaries
shall be responsible for any liabilities related to the assets (other than those in respect of certain speciÑcally
assumed liabilities which did not include asbestos-related liabilities). The sale orders issued by the
U.S. Bankruptcy Courts also found that under no circumstances could we be deemed a successor to any of the
sellers for purposes of any liabilities. We believe the manner through which our facilities were purchased in
conjunction with the attendant orders of the U.S. Bankruptcy Court places us in a better position than other
steelmakers with substantial exposure to asbestos-related liability or oÅ-site environmental liability. Despite
the foregoing it is possible that future claims with respect to historic asbestos exposure could be directed at us.
The risk of incurring liability as the result of such claims is considered remote.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

On November 25, 2003, prior to our initial public oÅering, our stockholders unanimously approved by
written consent the adoption of our Third Amended and Restated CertiÑcate of Incorporation.

PART II

Item 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Stock and Related Security Holder Matters

ISG's common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the stock symbol ISG and has
been so listed since December 12, 2003, when it Ñrst was listed in connection with the Company's initial
public oÅering. The approximate number of stockholders of record of ISG's common stock is 55 as of
February 29, 2004.

Between December 12, 2003 and December 31, 2003, inclusive, the highest sales price of ISG's common
stock was $42.14 per share, and the lowest sales price of ISG's common stock was $31.04 per share. The
closing price on February 29, 2004 was $39.21.

No cash dividends have been declared since ISG's inception. Our credit facilities permit us to pay cash
dividends only under limited circumstances. In general, we are permitted to pay cash dividends so long as we
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are not in default under the credit facilities and the amount of the dividend, when taken together with any
other restricted payments and dividends made previously, does not exceed:

‚ the sum of:

‚ $10 million,

‚ 20% of our aggregate consolidated net income for full Ñscal years ending on or after December 31,
2003 but before the date of the dividend, but only for those years where our consolidated net income
is positive, and

‚ 50% of the net cash proceeds received by us from an issuance of our equity that remain after full
repayment of our tranche A term loan, and 100% of the net cash proceeds received by us from an
issuance of our equity that remain after full repayment of both our tranche A and tranche B term
loans

minus:

‚ the sum of:

‚ all dividends and other restricted payments made by us and our subsidiaries under the relevant terms
of our credit facilities, and

‚ for full Ñscal years ending on or after December 31, 2003 but before the date of the dividend in
which our consolidated net income is negative, 100% of the absolute value of that negative amount,
capped in any year at the then-current maximum permitted dividend amount.

At December 31, 2003, the maximum available for these payments was $52.5 million. We are also
permitted to pay cash dividends in connection with or under the terms of our employee beneÑt plans and stock
option plans. The terms of any future credit arrangement that we enter may contain similar restrictions on our
ability to pay dividends or make payments or distributions with respect to our capital stock.

Sales of Unregistered Securities

On May 7, 2003, we issued securities that subsequently converted into 7,994,623 shares of restricted
Common Stock to certain accredited investors, as that term is deÑned in Rule 501(a) promulgated under the
Securities Act, for a purchase price of $19.60 per share of Common Stock, giving eÅect to a conversion of our
Class B Common Stock into Common Stock, for an aggregate purchase price of $156,695,000.

On May 7, 2003, we also issued securities that subsequently converted into 765,306 shares of Common
Stock to Bethlehem Steel Corporation as partial consideration for the Bethlehem assets.

Both sales of the above securities were deemed to be exempt from registration in reliance upon
Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933. The recipients of securities in each such transaction represented
their intentions to acquire the securities for investment only and not with a view to or for sale in connection
with any distribution thereof, and appropriate legends were aÇxed to the share certiÑcates issued in such
transactions, and to the share certiÑcates of the Common Stock into which the above-described securities
converted. All recipients had adequate access to information about us. No underwriters were involved in the
foregoing sales of securities.

Use of Proceeds From Our Completed Public OÅering

On December 17, 2003, we completed the initial public oÅering of our Common Stock. The managing
underwriters for the oÅering were Goldman, Sachs & Co., UBS Securities LLC, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc.,
Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc., and CIBC World Markets Corp. The shares of common stock sold in the oÅering
were registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, on a Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Registration No. 333-107524) that was declared eÅective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on
December 11, 2003. All 18,975,000 shares of Common Stock registered under the registration statement,
including an aggregate of 2,475,000 shares of Common Stock covered by an over-allotment option granted by
us to the underwriters, were sold at a price to the public of $28.00 per share. All of the shares sold in the
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oÅering were sold by us. The oÅering did not terminate until after the sale of all of the securities registered on
the Registration Statement. The aggregate gross proceeds to us from our initial public oÅering were
approximately $531.3 million, before deducting underwriting discounts, commission and expenses. The net
proceeds to us from the oÅering were approximately $491.6 million, after deducting an aggregate of
approximately $35.6 million in underwriting discounts and commissions paid to the underwriters and
$4.1 million in other expenses incurred in connection with the oÅering.

None of the proceeds from the oÅering were paid, directly or indirectly, to any of our oÇcers or directors
or any of their associates, or to any persons owning 10% or more of our outstanding common stock or any of
our aÇliates. We used the net proceeds from our initial public oÅering as follows:

‚ $228.4 million to repay all amounts outstanding under the tranche A term loan under our credit
facilities,

‚ $132.1 million to repay a portion of the amounts outstanding under the tranche B term loan under our
credit facilities,

‚ $14.1 million to repay the amount outstanding under the credit facility of Chicago Cold Rolling LLC, a
subsidiary of ISG, in December 2003,

‚ $2.8 million to repay the amount outstanding under the Acme Steel Promissory Note in January 2004,

‚ and the remaining proceeds were used for general corporate and working capital purposes.
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Item 6. Selected Historical Financial Data

The following selected historical consolidated Ñnancial data as of and for the year ended December 31,
2003 and for the period from inception, February 22, 2002, through December 31, 2002 is derived from ISG's
audited consolidated Ñnancial statements.

Two Year Financial and Operating Summaries

2003 2002

(Dollars in millions,
except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data

Net sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $4,070.0 $ 933.1

Costs and expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,066.5 816.5

Interest expense, netÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 50.9 2.6

Income (loss) before income taxesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (47.4) 114.0

(BeneÑt) provision for income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (23.9) 45.9

Net (loss) income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (23.5) 68.1

Deemed dividend on conversion of Class B common stockÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (73.6) Ì

Net (loss) income applicable to common stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (97.1) $ 68.1

(Loss) income per share

BasicÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (1.26) $ 1.02

Diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (1.26) $ 0.99

Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalents ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 193.6 $ 9.8

Receivables, inventories and other current assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,513.8 384.5

Current liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (831.5) (234.1)

Working capitalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 875.9 $ 160.2

Property, plant and equipment, netÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 861.9 $ 244.8

Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,635.0 668.1

Total long-term debt and capital lease obligations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 575.5 68.4

Total liabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,685.8 363.9

Stockholders' equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 949.2 304.2

Other Data

Capital expenditures ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 96.9 $ 48.1

Raw steel production capability at year end (net tons in thousands)ÏÏÏÏÏ 18,000 7,000

Raw steel production (net tons in thousands)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 11,274 3,081

Steel products shipped (net tons in thousands) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10,406 2,602

Employees at year end ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 12,000 3,400

Common stock outstanding at year end (shares in thousands)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 97,471 69,663
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

ISG's Consolidated Results of Operations for the Periods Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

Overview

ISG is an integrated U.S.-based steel manufacturing company that owns and operates 11 major steel
producing and Ñnishing facilities in six states. The Company was formed on February 22, 2002 and has since
become the second largest domestic integrated steel producer based on annual raw steel production capability
by acquiring out of bankruptcy the principal steel assets of three companies.

The following table below shows the assets acquired, liabilities assumed and the net cash paid for the
assets of Bethlehem Steel Corporation on May 7, 2003, Acme Steel Corporation on October 10, 2002 and The
LTV Corporation in April and May 2002.

Bethlehem Acme LTV

($ in millions)

Acquired assets:

Receivables, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 379.2 $ Ì $ Ì

Inventories ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 730.3 Ì 52.4

Property, plant and equipmentÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 602.8 67.9 135.2

Intangibles and other assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 132.7 Ì 47.2

1,845.0 67.9 234.8

Acquired liabilities:

Accounts payableÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 251.4 Ì Ì

Other current liabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 162.8 3.9 64.8

Long term debt and capital lease obligations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 358.9 Ì Ì

Long term environmental and other obligationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 151.8 3.1 86.6

Long term pension and other retiree beneÑtsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 82.5 Ì Ì

1,007.4 7.0 151.4

Net assets recorded ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 837.6 60.9 83.4

Value of stock issued ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (15.0) Ì Ì

Cash paid, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 822.6 $60.9 $ 83.4

Although there is generally considered to be substantial global excess steel capacity, there is insuÇcient
capacity in the United States to serve the country's typical annual market demand. Accordingly, when the
U.S. dollar has been strong, substantial steel imports have Öowed to the United States to meet that demand
and utilize a portion of the excess global capacity. Recently, with the signiÑcant growth in both production of
and demand for steel in the People's Republic of China, ocean going freight vessels and raw materials such as
coke and steel scrap have been in short supply, driving up prices for these commodities. Also, the value of the
U.S. dollar has recently declined from general historic levels in the international market. All these global
economic industry factors have a signiÑcant positive eÅect on ISG and the domestic steel industry. Higher
international raw material costs and a relatively weak domestic dollar causes imports of foreign steel to be
more expensive than domestically produced products, reducing available imports to meet market demand.
When worldwide demand is strong, there is also less pressure on foreign steel producers to ship products into
the domestic market. With a relatively weak U.S. dollar, rising raw material costs and an improving worldwide
demand for steel products, the domestic steel industry expects to realize substantial price increases in 2004 for
the Ñrst time in several years. This recent increase in prices and limited available international supply of steel
to the domestic market, however, could reverse just as rapidly as it arose.

The U.S. economy has been improving from the recession of late 2000 and early 2001 with strong
consumer demand, improving business investment in equipment and software and an improving stock market
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resulting in strong growth in Gross Domestic Product (GDP) in the second half of 2003. Non-residential
construction and selected machinery and equipment markets, however, have not recovered. The ongoing
consolidation of the domestic steel industry has reduced the number of domestic competitors, mainly by
Ñnancially sound producers acquiring facilities from competitors who have gone through the bankruptcy
process. Over 35 domestic companies in the steel industry have Ñled for bankruptcy protection in the past six
years. Consolidation and selective rationalization of some capacity could continue. While consolidation has
been occurring, the market remains somewhat fragmented because steel service centers and processors
compete with producers.

Consolidated Results of Operations

The discussion below relates to the results of ISG for the year ended December 31, 2003 and the period
from February 22, 2002 (inception) through December 31, 2002. Prior to the acquisition of assets from LTV
in April 2002, we had no operations. Our operating philosophy and labor contract are also substantially
diÅerent from those previously in eÅect at those operations. As a result, we believe pro forma historical
Ñnancial information, had we been organized and owned those assets, is not appropriate for understanding
what our Ñnancial results would have been for such previous periods. Also, the acquisition of Bethlehem assets
in May 2003 more than doubled our shipping capacity. Accordingly, our Ñnancial results for the year ended
December 31, 2003 are not comparable to our results for the period from February 22, 2002 (incep-
tion) through December 31, 2002.

Consolidated Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 2003

In 2003, we had a net loss of $23.5 million on net sales of $4.1 billion and shipments of 10.4 million net
tons. In early May 2003, we completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Bethlehem and its
subsidiaries. We accounted for this acquisition as a business combination and the results of these former
Bethlehem facilities are included in our consolidated Ñnancial statements since the date of the acquisition.
The Bethlehem acquisition more than doubled our shipping capacity. Sales of these former Bethlehem
operations represented about 55% of our 2003 sales. The addition of the Bethlehem facilities substantially
broadened our product mix with the addition of plate, tin and rail products. It also improved our product mix
by increasing the percentage of higher value-added cold rolled and coated products.

The table below shows our revenues by product and certain other data for the 2003 and 2002 periods and
on a pro forma basis as if we had acquired Bethlehem on January 1, 2003.

2003 2002

Actual Pro forma Actual

Hot RolledÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 46% 42% 71%

Cold Rolled ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 19 19 22

Coated ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 20 21 7

Plate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8 10 Ì

Tin Plate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4 4 Ì

Rail and other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3 4 Ì

100% 100% 100%

Net sales (dollars in millions)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $4,070.0 $5,308.7 $933.1

Average derived price per ton shipped ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 391 $ 406 $ 359

Shipments (tons in thousands) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10,406 13,076 2,602

Raw steel production (tons in thousands) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 11,274 14,206 3,081

The $32 increase for 2003 in our price per ton, derived by dividing net sales by net tons shipped, results
from the Bethlehem acquisition. Excluding the eÅect of Bethlehem's product mix, the average price for 2003
was about $40 per ton below the 2002 price. Prices were lower, principally as a result of additional industry
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capacity being restarted in late 2002 that was fully operational during all of 2003, as total demand for steel
remained about the same.

Cost of sales in 2003 was about 94% of sales compared to 81% for 2002. As mentioned previously,
excluding the eÅect of the Bethlehem acquisition, average price per ton was down $40 or 11%. Excluding the
eÅect of a higher value added product mix, costs per ton shipped were higher in 2003 due to reduced raw steel
production for the second and third quarters causing Ñxed costs to be absorbed over fewer net tons. In
addition, 2002 includes certain low cost slabs and coils purchased initially from LTV. Our 2003 results also
include $51.8 million of non-cash charges in connection with the acquisition of Bethlehem assets. Under
business combination accounting, inventory acquired is recorded at a fair value that allows for a reasonable
margin for costs to complete processing and selling eÅorts. As a result, the cost of sales was recorded at an
amount greater than our costs to produce by $40.8 million. Also, Bethlehem had certain supply contracts for
electricity, natural gas and coke at prices below current market rates at the acquisition date. We recognized
the value of these below market contracts as an asset and were expensing this asset over the life of the
associated contracts. Consequently, we recognized a non-cash charge of $11.0 million in 2003 related to these
contracts. In the fourth quarter of 2003, we wrote oÅ about $15.2 million of these intangible assets as a
provision for deferred income taxes. For more information, see the discussion below on federal income tax
provision. During 2003, liquidation of LIFO inventory quantities reduced cost of sales by about $9.0 million.

In 2003, our costs increased for natural gas, coke and employment. Natural gas spot prices for facilities
that were part of ISG in 2002 increased about 50% to average $5.81 per MMBtu during 2003 as compared to
approximately $4 per MMBtu for 2002, or $46 million for the year. Coke costs for the facilities that were part
of ISG in 2002 increased for the coke ovens and purchased coke, increasing costs about $42 million in 2003.
Our employment costs were higher in 2003 principally from higher required contributions to the Steelworkers
Pension Trust under our labor agreements. An expense of $2,800 per steelworker employed on the dates the
labor agreements were ratiÑed was recognized for the Bethlehem facilities in 2003 and the LTV and Acme
facilities in 2002. The resulting expense was about $19.1 million and $7.6 million, respectively. In addition,
2003 includes expense of $1.50 per hour paid for steelworkers pension for a total of about $25.9 million.

Marketing, administrative and other expenses increased in 2003 on an absolute basis from 2002 levels as a
result of the acquisition of Bethlehem assets but decreased from 5.4% of sales for the period ended
December 31, 2002, to 3.8% of sales for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Depreciation expense was $76.0 million and increased from 2002 as a result of the Bethlehem acquisition.

Interest costs increased from $2.6 million in 2002 to $50.9 million in 2003 as a result of our borrowing
under our new credit facility in May to Ñnance the acquisition of Bethlehem assets and our assumption of
capital leases and certain debt of Bethlehem.

The acquisition of Bethlehem assets was structured as a tax-free reorganization. Accordingly, the
historical tax attributes of Bethlehem with certain limitations are carried forward to ISG's consolidated federal
income tax return. These tax attributes include Bethlehem's net operating loss carryforward and depreciable
basis in property, plant and equipment. At the date of acquisition, the net deferred tax assets acquired were not
recognized because there were a number of required actions related to, among other matters, Bethlehem's plan
of liquidation under federal bankruptcy law. During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Bankruptcy Court
conÑrmed Bethlehem's plan of liquidation, which subsequently became eÅective on December 31, 2003.
Accordingly, in the fourth quarter, we determined it was appropriate to recognize the acquired net deferred tax
assets and any related valuation allowance. We estimate the deferred tax assets acquired from Bethlehem to
be about $1.3 billion. The ultimate realization of these tax beneÑts depends on our ability to generate future
taxable income and agreement by the Internal Revenue Service to the transaction structure. Generally
accepted accounting principles allow deferred tax assets to be recorded only if based on management's
judgment suÇcient evidence exists to support that it is ""more likely than not'' that the asset will be realized.
Based on ISG's two year existence, limited Ñnancial performance and cumulative tax loss from inception,
management concluded that the available evidence was insuÇcient to support that it is ""more likely than not''
that the deferred tax asset will be realized. Accordingly, a full valuation allowance was established for the
Bethlehem and ISG deferred tax asset in the fourth quarter of 2003 resulting in a provision for federal income
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taxes of $5.3 million. In addition, generally accepted accounting principles require that we recognize any tax
beneÑts of the Bethlehem acquisition realized in 2003 through the income statement only after writing oÅ any
remaining intangible assets acquired from Bethlehem. Accordingly, in the fourth quarter of 2003, we wrote oÅ
$15.2 million of intangible assets as a provision for deferred income taxes.

These adjustments combined with carrying back a portion of our 2003 tax loss to obtain a federal income
tax refund resulted in an unusually high tax beneÑt in 2003.

Consolidated Results of Operations for the Period Ended December 31, 2002

In 2002, we had net income of $68.1 on net sales of $933.1 million and shipments of 2.6 million net tons.
The substantial majority of these products were sold to third-party processors and service centers on the spot
market. Our Hennepin and Riverdale facilities commenced operations in the fourth quarter of 2002. However,
these facilities did not achieve their production capacities or contribute signiÑcantly to our net sales in 2002.

Prices at the start of 2002 were at their lowest level in many years, but rapidly increased through the Ñrst
nine months driven by signiÑcant domestic capacity reduction, the impact of Section 201 tariÅs and inventory
replacement by service centers. Fueled by these factors, spot market prices increased by as much as 80%
during 2002. During the majority of 2002, as we established our market presence, we priced our products
below the spot market price until the fourth quarter when we began to price at the prevailing market price.
Sales throughout 2002 steadily increased as we restarted idled facilities and built our customer base. During
this restart period, our net sales were positively impacted by the relatively high prices in the spot market.

Cost of sales was approximately 81% of our sales. Labor costs in 2002 were incurred under an interim
collective bargaining agreement, which remained in place until our new collective bargaining agreement
became eÅective on December 15, 2002. Our new agreement had a minimal impact on our results of
operations for 2002, but will result in higher future costs. Our energy requirements for 2002 were purchased at
both market rates and under future contracts throughout 2002. In late 2002, natural gas prices began to
escalate from a price of approximately $3 per MMBtu to approximately $4 per MMBtu; however, due to
forward contracts purchased at earlier prices covering approximately 70% of our requirements, there was no
signiÑcant eÅect on our results of operations in 2002.

In addition, cost of sales for 2002 includes $21.4 million of non-recurring costs related to the start-up of
previously idled LTV and Acme assets and a non-cash charge of $21.6 million due to the adoption of the
LIFO method for inventory valuation. Cost of sales in 2002 also included a charge of $10.6 million relating to
USWA contract-related expenses as well as the initial contribution to the USWA's multiemployer pension
plan for the employees covered by our collective bargaining agreement. Finally, our cost of sales for 2002 was
in part inÖuenced by our initial purchase of slabs and raw materials from LTV at spot market prices, which
were at historically low levels. Subsequently in the second half of 2002, spot market steel prices rose
signiÑcantly. As a result, we were able to convert the slabs and raw materials acquired from LTV to Ñnished
products which were sold at favorable prices.

Marketing, administrative and other expenses were $50.2 million during 2002. These expenses consisted
primarily of salaries and expenses for sales and marketing functions both at our corporate headquarters and
each of our operating facilities, legal and professional fees and information system development costs.

Depreciation of $11.0 million in 2002 was calculated on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives
from three to 20 years. The depreciation recorded in 2002 and to be recorded thereafter results from the
advantageous purchase prices paid for the idled LTV and Acme assets that were only a fraction of the selling
entities' prior book value for the assets.

Total net interest expense of $2.6 million includes $1.6 million of interest expense on credit facilities,
$1.4 million of amortization of deferred debt fees and was reduced by $250,000 of capitalized interest and
$173,000 of interest income in 2002.
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During 2002, our income tax expense was $45.9 million. Our eÅective tax rate was 40.3%. Current
deferred tax assets relate primarily to diÅerences between Ñnancial and tax reporting for inventories and
accrued expenses.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our business is capital intensive and requires substantial capital expenditures for upgrading and
maintaining our equipment and remaining in compliance with environmental laws and regulations. Our short-
term liquidity needs arise primarily from capital expenditures, working capital requirements and principal and
interest payments related to our outstanding debt. We have met these liquidity requirements with cash
provided by operations, equity oÅerings and debt.

We deÑne liquidity as our cash position and remaining availability under our revolving credit facility. As
of December 31, 2003, we had liquidity of $432.7 million consisting of cash of $193.6 million and available
borrowing capacity of $239.1 million under our $350.0 million revolving credit facility. As of December 31,
2002, we had liquidity of $102.9 million.

Cash provided by operating activities for 2003 was $288.9 million. Cash from operating activities was
positive despite recording a net loss because of $112.7 million in non-cash charges to income, principally for
depreciation and deferred income taxes, and reducing working capital and other items by $199.7 million,
principally reducing inventories and increasing accounts payable and other accrued liabilities. During 2002,
cash used by operating activities was $111.6 million and was primarily for building working capital related to
accounts receivable and inventory during the start-up of our operations.

Cash used by investing activities was $885.2 million for 2003 as we paid $822.6 million (net of cash
acquired) to purchase the Bethlehem assets. This amount is net of cash of $41.1 million received subsequent
to the closing from Bethlehem as required in the acquisition agreements for working capital adjustments and
amounts not needed for secured, priority and administrative claims. Additional amounts could be received
pending resolution of certain legal and contingent issues. Also, this amount includes payments of $81.6 million
related to the transition assistance program for USWA represented former Bethlehem employees. We expect
to pay an additional $23.6 million over the next two quarters in connection with this program.

We made capital expenditures of $96.9 million in 2003 including rebuilding the hearth at the Indiana
Harbor H-4 blast furnace that was damaged from a hot metal leak. The blast furnace is now expected to
operate for at least eight to ten years before needing a major rebuild. We anticipate making capital
expenditures in 2004 of about $300 million of which about $100 million for strategic purposes.

On February 19, 2004, we entered into an agreement to acquire most of the assets of Weirton Steel
Corporation for about $255 million, which includes assuming certain liabilities. Closing is subject to
bankruptcy court approval, anti-trust matters and customary closing conditions. The process of obtaining
bankruptcy court approval will include the solicitation by Weirton of competing oÅers for its assets, and there
can be no assurance that this transaction will be consummated. We expect to have the ability to pay the cash
portion of the acquisition from existing cash and credit arrangements. We may pursue, however, Ñnancing
alternatives that would improve liquidity and increase Ñnancial Öexibility.

Proceeds from asset sales were $34.3 million in 2003 including $25.6 million for assets acquired from
Bethlehem. We expect proceeds of about $50 million in 2004 from sales of surplus assets, including
Bethlehem's former corporate headquarters building.

Cash used in investing activities in 2002 was $178.1 million. This included $144.3 million for the
acquisition of assets from LTV and Acme. Capital expenditures were $48.1 million, principally for the start-up
of the previously idled LTV and Acme facilities. Sales of assets totaled $14.3 million in 2002 of which
$6.0 million was realized from the sale of a 20% interest in the equity of an aÇliate joint venture and the
balance relates to other surplus assets. Proceeds from certain sales were required to be used to paydown
outstanding amounts under our credit facilities.
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Cash provided by Ñnancing activities for 2003 was $780.1 million. In May 2003, a private equity oÅering
provided $156.7 million. In connection with the Bethlehem asset acquisition, we entered into new credit
facilities, which, among other things, replaced ISG's prior $200.0 million secured revolving line of credit. The
new credit facilities permitted borrowings up to $1.0 billion and consisted of a $350.0 million revolving credit
facility, a $250.0 million Tranche A term loan facility and a $400.0 million Tranche B term loan facility. In
December 2003, we completed our initial public oÅering that provided $491.6 million. Some of these proceeds
were used to repay $228.4 million of the Tranche A loan and $132.1 million of the Tranche B loan as required
in our credit facilities. These amounts may not be reborrowed under the agreements. As of December 31,
2003, we had $266.8 million outstanding under the new credit facilities. Advances under the revolving credit
facility permit borrowings only in an amount not to exceed certain percentages of our receivables and
inventory. At December 31, 2003 interest on our borrowings under the revolving credit facility was, at our
option, at either LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 2.50% to 4.00% per annum or the Prime rate plus a
margin ranging from 1.50% to 3.00% per annum. Rates will decrease by 0.5% if our ratio of debt and capital
leases to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA), as deÑned in the
agreement, is 3.0 to 1.0 or less.

Cash provided by Ñnancing activities was $299.5 million in 2002 from equity oÅerings and net borrowings.

Our credit facilities require certain mandatory pre-payments upon the receipt of the proceeds from
certain asset sales, casualty events, equity oÅerings, debt oÅerings and in the event that we have excess cash
Öow as determined in accordance with the credit facilities. They contain customary aÇrmative and negative
covenants for senior credit facilities of this type, including, but not limited to, limitations on the incurrence of
indebtedness, asset dispositions, investments, dividends and other restricted payments, liens and transactions
with aÇliates. The credit facilities also contain certain Ñnancial covenants, including, but not limited to, a
maximum leverage ratio, a minimum Ñxed charge coverage ratio, a limitation on capital expenditures,
minimum EBITDA and minimum net worth as deÑned. They also contain customary events of default,
including, but not limited to, failure to pay principal or interest, breach of covenants or representations and
warranties, cross-default to other indebtedness, judgment default and insolvency. If an event of default occurs
under the credit facilities, the lenders under the credit facilities will be entitled to take various actions,
including demanding payment for all amounts outstanding and foreclosing on any collateral. At December 31,
2003, we were in compliance with all of our covenants.

Contractual Obligations. The following table sets forth our contractual obligations at December 31,
2003, and the eÅect such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash Öow in future periods.

Contractual Obligations
Payments Due by Period

Less One- Three-
Than Three Five Beyond

At December 31, 2003 Total One Year Years Years Five Years

(Dollars in millions)

DebtÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 374.3 $ 11.5 $ 22.9 $ 339.9 $ Ì

Guarantee of joint venture debt and
leases ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 36.1 9.1 13.2 13.2 0.6

Operating leases ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 216.6 34.6 57.4 41.5 83.1

Capital leases ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 248.0 35.3 72.6 43.1 97.0

Other long-term liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 338.8 54.0 71.8 37.0 176.0

Pensions and other retiree beneÑtsÏÏÏÏÏ 143.4 24.1 39.5 28.7 51.1

Purchase obligationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6,505.2 689.1 1,298.0 1,101.4 3,416.7

$7,862.4 $857.7 $1,575.4 $1,604.8 $3,824.5

Purchase obligations include long-term contracts for our requirements of certain commodities and others
on a take or pay basis but exclude purchase orders issued in the ordinary course of business, because they
generally are cancelable if our needs change. We expect to purchase goods and services on such ordinary
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course purchase orders of about $4 -5 billion per year over the next few years. Our ability to meet our debt
service obligations and reduce our total debt will depend upon our future performance, which in turn, will
depend upon general economic, Ñnancial and business conditions, along with competition, legislation and
regulation Ì factors that are largely beyond our control. We believe that cash Öow from operations, together
with other available sources of funds including additional borrowings under our credit facilities will be
adequate for at least the next twelve months for making required payments of principal and interest on our
indebtedness and for funding anticipated capital expenditures and working capital requirements, including
purchase obligations. However, we cannot assure that our operating results, cash Öow and capital resources
will be suÇcient for repayment of our debt in the future.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.
Interpretation No. 46 as revised in December 2003, requires existing unconsolidated variable interest entities
to be consolidated by their primary beneÑciaries if the entities do not eÅectively disperse risk among parties
involved. It is based on the concept that companies that control another entity through interests other than
voting interests should consolidate the controlled entity. Interpretation No. 46 and its revision did not have an
eÅect on our consolidated Ñnancial position, results of operations or cash Öows.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities. SFAS No. 149 amends and clariÑes the accounting for derivative instruments,
including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities under
SFAS 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. SFAS No. 149 is generally
eÅective for contracts entered into or modiÑed after June 30, 2003 and for hedging relationships designated
after June 30, 2003. The adoption of SFAS No. 149 did not have an eÅect on our consolidated Ñnancial
position, results of operations or cash Öows.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity. SFAS No. 150 requires that certain Ñnancial instruments,
which under previous guidance were accounted for as equity, must now be accounted for as liabilities. The
Ñnancial instruments aÅected include mandatory redeemable stock, certain Ñnancial instruments that require
or may require the issuer to buy back some of its shares of stock in exchange for cash or other assets and
certain obligations that can be settled with shares of stock. SFAS No. 150 is eÅective for all Ñnancial
instruments entered into or modiÑed after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is eÅective at the beginning of the Ñrst
interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption of SFAS No. 150 did not have an eÅect on the
Company's consolidated Ñnancial position, results of operations or cash Öows.

In December 2003, the FASB revised SFAS No. 132 (revised 2003), Employers' Disclosures about
Pensions and Other Postemployment BeneÑts. SFAS No. 132 (revised 2003) requires additional disclosure
on the assets, obligations cash Öows and net periodic beneÑt cost of deÑned beneÑt pension plans and other
deÑned beneÑt postretirement plans in the notes to consolidated Ñnancial statements. The disclosures include
describing the types of plan assets, investment strategy, measurement dates, plan obligations cash Öows, and
components of net periodic beneÑt cost recognized during interim periods. We adopted SFAS No. 132
(revised 2003) in the fourth quarter of 2003 and since this statement requires changes in disclosure only, it did
not have any eÅect on our consolidated Ñnancial position, results of operations or cash Öows.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

ISG's consolidated Ñnancial statements require management to select accounting principles where
alternatives exist and make estimates and judgments that aÅect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses and in required disclosures. Future results may diÅer from these amounts because
outcomes may diÅer from those on which management based their estimates. We believe the following critical
accounting policies aÅect our more signiÑcant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our
consolidated Ñnancial statements.
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Purchase Accounting. Accounting for acquisitions requires us to allocate the cost of the enterprise to the
speciÑc assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair value at the date of acquisition.
Accounting principles allow us up to one year to acquire all necessary valuation information for the allocation.
While independent appraisals and other valuations are used to allocate the cost of acquisitions, management is
still required to make signiÑcant estimates and assumptions, for example, regarding the timing of the sale of
certain surplus assets acquired that are not expected to be used in our business. In addition, when the fair
value of the assets acquired exceeds their cost, we are required to pro rate that excess to reduce noncurrent
assets making the amount initially assigned to all assets and liabilities more important.

Revenue Recognition. Sales are recognized primarily upon shipment and transfer of all substantial risks
of ownership to the customer. Shipments are made only under a valid contract or purchase order where the
sales price is Ñxed or determinable and collectability of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured. Sales are
made with no rights to return product, other than for defective materials. An allowance is estimated for future
credits to customer for returns of defective materials and other adjustments. The adequacy of the allowance is
periodically reviewed by comparison to actual experience. Claims and adjustments in any future period from
sales in 2003 could diÅer from our current estimates.

Allowances for Accounts Receivable. We evaluate the collectability of our receivables on a regular basis
based on a combination of factors. When we become aware that it is likely that a customer may not meet its
Ñnancial obligations to us, such as in the case of bankruptcy or deterioration in the customer's Ñnancial
performance, we record a speciÑc allowance for bad debts to reduce the related receivable to the amount we
reasonably expect to collect. We also record allowances for accounts receivable for all other customers based
on a variety of factors, including the length of time the receivables are past due and historical experience. If
circumstances related to speciÑc customers change, our estimates of the recoverability of receivables are
adjusted.

Inventories. We have adopted LIFO inventory accounting for about 20% of our inventories. We did not
adopt LIFO for the inventories acquired from Bethlehem, but expect to adopt LIFO for that inventory in
2004. We record slow-moving inventories at their estimated net realizable value, which generally approxi-
mates the recoverable scrap value. We also periodically evaluate our inventory carrying value to ensure that
the amounts are stated at the lower of cost or market. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those
projected by management, additional inventory write-downs may be required. Such lower of cost or market
write downs are typically infrequent under LIFO inventory accounting.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. We evaluate the recoverability of the carrying value of long-lived
assets used in operations, consisting of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets regularly and when
speciÑc indicators of impairment, such as reductions in demand or signiÑcant economic factors are present.
Our policy is to determine whether the carrying value of an asset is impaired based on a comparison to the
undiscounted estimated future cash Öows from the asset. If such a comparison indicated that there is
impairment, the impaired asset would be written down to fair value, which is typically calculated using
estimated future cash Öows and a discount rate based upon our weighted average cost of capital. SigniÑcant
management judgment is required in the forecast of future operating results that is used in the preparation of
estimated future cash Öows and others may reasonably arrive at diÅerent conclusions. It is reasonably possible
that actual future net sales and the remaining estimated economic life of the assets could diÅer from the
estimates used to assess the recoverability. In that event, impairment charges or shortened useful lives of
certain long-lived assets could be required. To date, no impairments have been recognized.

Deferred Income Taxes. Our acquisition of the assets of Bethlehem was structured under the federal
internal revenue code to allow us to acquire the historical tax attributes of Bethlehem's assets and net
operating loss carryforwards within certain limitations. Generally accepted accounting principles allow us to
record such deferred tax assets only when based on available evidence it is ""more likely than not'' that we will
realize these beneÑts. ISG has less than two years of operations and these resulted in a cumulative tax loss.
Accordingly, there is currently insuÇcient evidence to support recognizing the asset. We have established a
full valuation allowance at December 31, 2003, for our net deferred tax asset acquired from Bethlehem and
that generated by ISG. Because the fair value of the Bethlehem net assets acquired exceeds our cost, we are
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required to reduce the fair value assigned to noncurrent assets other than deferred taxes. If we had determined
that it was ""more likely than not'' that we would realize these deferred tax assets based on available evidence,
it is possible that we could have recognized an extraordinary gain in 2003 after reducing all of the Bethlehem
noncurrent assets to zero. In the fourth quarter of 2003, we realized certain tax beneÑts from the Bethlehem
acquisition. Generally accepted accounting principles required that we reduce any long-term intangible assets
acquired from Bethlehem before recognizing any beneÑt for income taxes in the income statement.
Accordingly, we wrote oÅ about $15.2 million of intangible assets through the provision for deferred income
taxes in 2003. If based on available evidence in the future, we determine that it is ""more likely than not'' that
we will realize these deferred tax assets, we will eliminate the valuation allowance in that year by providing a
beneÑt for income taxes in the income statement.

Environmental and Other Contingencies. We are currently engaged in the investigation and remediation
of environmental contamination at a number of our facilities pursuant to both federal and state environmental
laws. For a more detailed site-by-site discussion, see ""Business Ì Environmental Matters.'' We are subject to
changing and increasingly stringent environmental laws and regulations concerning air emissions, water
discharges and waste disposal, as well as certain remediation activities that involve the clean up of soils and
groundwater. We recognize a liability for environmental remediation when it is likely that such remediation
will be required and we can estimate the amount. Environmental liabilities assumed in connection with the
acquisition of steel facilities and other assets are recorded at the present value of the estimated future
payments discounted at 8%. Environmental liabilities recorded in the future for currently unknown contamina-
tion and future contamination will not be discounted. There are numerous uncertainties over both the timing
and the ultimate costs that we expect to incur with respect to this work. SigniÑcant judgment is required in
making these estimates and it is reasonable that others may come to diÅerent conclusions. If, in the future, we
are required to investigate and remediate any currently unknown contamination and waste on properties we
own, we may record signiÑcant additional liabilities. Also, if our estimates of the cost to remediate currently
known contamination and waste change, we will reduce or increase the recorded liabilities through credits or
charges in the income statement.

Pensions and Other Postemployment BeneÑts. Accounting for deÑned beneÑt pensions and other
postemployment beneÑts requires the use of actuarial techniques and assumptions including, among others,
assumptions about employees' future retirement decisions, mortality of participants, future increases in wages
and health care costs, discount and interest rates and plan continuation. These assumptions have a material
impact on the net obligation disclosed in the notes to the consolidated Ñnancial statements and the amount
recognized as expense for a year. For example, we do not plan to continue to provide retiree medical beneÑts
after the expiration of the current labor agreement with the United Steelworkers of America in 2008.
Accordingly, we assume that only those who are eligible and choose to retire under the current labor
agreement will receive retiree medical beneÑts. We are also assuming that the elimination of this retirement
beneÑt in 2008 will not signiÑcantly aÅect the ages at which our employees choose to retire. Changing either
of these assumptions would have a signiÑcant impact on our disclosed obligation and annual expense for other
postemployment beneÑts.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk

We are exposed to certain risks associated with the Öuctuation in interest rates and prices in consumable
commodities, including natural gas, heating oil, coal, coke, steel scrap and non-ferrous metals. We seek to
minimize the potential adverse impact of those market risks through the use of appropriate management
techniques that could include derivative Ñnancial instruments. At December 31, 2003, we held cash Öow
hedges with respect to natural gas with the eÅective portion of such instruments reÖected in accumulated
other comprehensive income. We conduct the majority of our business in the United States and all of our
revenues and expenses are transacted in U.S. dollars. As a result, our operations are not materially aÅected by
Öuctuations in the foreign currencies. We currently have no Ñnancial instruments in place for managing the
exposure for foreign currency exchange rates. Therefore, a hypothetical change in the exchange rate of the
U.S. dollar versus other major currencies would impact our future earnings, fair values or cash Öows, only to
the extent it aÅects domestic imports of, demand for and price of raw materials and steel products.
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Energy costs expose us to cost volatility particularly on natural gas requirements. Based on combined pro
forma 2003 production, a $1 per MMBtu change in natural gas prices would have changed production costs by
approximately $4.9 million per month. In an eÅort to manage the risks associated with price Öuctuations on
natural gas and other commodities, from time to time, we use a variety of hedging instruments including
forward contracts, futures, swaps and options. At any point in time, we may utilize some or all of these hedging
instruments in our portfolio. We are also exposed to interest rate risk arising from the variable rate Ñnancing
on our revolving credit facility. A hypothetical increase or decrease in interest rates of 1% on our new credit
facilities would have changed interest expense by $4.0 million in 2003.

Also, see previous discussion of coal, coke and steel scrap in ""PART 1, Item 1. Business Ì Raw
Materials.''

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

ISG's Financial Statements and the accompanying Notes that are Ñled as part of this Report are listed
under ""PART IV, Item 14. Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K'' and are set forth on
pages F-1 through F-28 immediately following the signature pages of this Report.

Item 9. Changes and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive
oÇcer and principal Ñnancial oÇcer, we conducted an evaluation of the eÅectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as deÑned in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as of the end of the period covered by this report (Evaluation
Date). Based on this evaluation, our principal executive oÇcer and principal Ñnancial oÇcer concluded as of
the Evaluation Date that our disclosure controls and procedures were eÅective such that the information
relating to ISG and consolidated subsidiaries, required to be disclosed in our Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) reports (i) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
speciÑed in SEC rules and forms, and (ii) is accumulated and communicated to ISG management, including
our principal executive oÇcer and principal Ñnancial oÇcer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive OÇcers of the Registrant.

Directors and Executive OÇcers of the Registrant

The directors and executive oÇcers of International Steel Group Inc. as of March 10, 2004, are as
follows:

Name Age Position

Wilbur L. Ross ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 66 Chairman of the Board of Directors and Director

Rodney B. Mott ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 52 President, Chief Executive OÇcer and Director

V. John Goodwin ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 60 Chief Operating OÇcer

Leonard M. Anthony ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 49 Chief Financial OÇcer and Secretary

Lonnie A. Arnett ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 58 Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting
OÇcer

William Brake, Jr. ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 43 Vice President & General Manager, ISG
Cleveland

Robert J. DalrympleÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 45 Vice President, Engineering & Services

Brian D. Kurtz ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 38 Vice President, Finance and Treasurer

John D. LeÖerÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 57 Vice President & General Manager, ISG
Sparrows Point

John C. Mang IIIÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 51 Vice President & General Manager, ISG Burns
Harbor

Jerome V. NelsonÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 43 Vice President, Sales & Marketing

Gordon C. Spelich ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 45 Vice President, Business Development

Karen A. Smith ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 49 Vice President & Corporate Manager Human
Resources

Thomas F. Wood ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 56 Vice President & Corporate Manager Labor
Relations

William C. Bartholomay ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 75 Director

Wilbur L. Ross, Jr. has served as the Chairman of the Board of Directors and a director of the company
since inception. Mr. Ross is the Chairman and Chief Executive OÇcer of WL Ross & Co. LLC, a merchant
banking Ñrm, a position he has held since April 2000. Mr. Ross is also the Chairman and Chief Executive
OÇcer of WLR Recovery Fund L.P., WLR Recovery Fund II L.P., Asia Recovery Fund, Asia Recovery
Fund Co-Investment, Nippon Investment Partners and Absolute Recovery Hedge Fund. Mr. Ross is also the
general partner of WLR Recovery Fund L.P., WLR Recovery Fund II L.P., Asia Recovery Fund, and
Absolute Recovery Hedge Fund. Mr. Ross is also Chairman of Ohizumi Manufacturing Inc. in Japan.
Mr. Ross is a member of The Business Roundtable. Mr. Ross is a board member of the Turnaround
Management Association, Nikko Electric Co. in Japan, Tong Yang Life Insurance Co. in Korea, and of Syms
Corp., Clarent Hospital Corp. and News Communications Inc. in the U.S. Previously, Mr. Ross served as a
Senior Managing Director at Rothschild Inc., an investment banking Ñrm, from October 1976 to March 2000.

Rodney B. Mott has served as our President, Chief Executive OÇcer and a director of the company since
April 2002. Mr. Mott has over 30 years of management experience in the metals industry. He served as
President and Chief Executive OÇcer of Pechiney Rolled Products, an aluminum rolling company and a
division of Pechiney SA from January 2000 to August 2001. From 1991 to 2000 Mr. Mott held various
positions with Nucor Corporation, a mini-mill steel producer, including Vice President/General Manager of
Nucor Steel, a division of Nucor Corporation, at the Blytheville, Arkansas and Berkley, South Carolina
facilities. Prior to joining Nucor, Mr. Mott was Superintendent of Operations at Lone Star Steel from 1986 to
1987. He began his metal management career at U.S. Steel's Fairless Hills operation, where he held positions
of increasing responsibility during a 14-year career from 1971 to 1986.
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V. John Goodwin has been our Chief Operating OÇcer since March 2003. Prior to that, he served as
Chairman and Chief Executive OÇcer of Steel Consultants. Mr. Goodwin has 35 years of leadership
experience in the American steel industry including 27 years with U.S. Steel, an integrated steel producer.
During his service with U.S. Steel, Mr. Goodwin held positions of increasing responsibility including serving
as General Manager of Gary from 1987 to 1994, General Manager of Mon Valley from 1984 to 1987 and
various supervisory and management positions at Fairless from 1967 to 1984. After leaving U.S. Steel,
Mr. Goodwin assumed the position of CEO/COO of National Steel from 1994 to 1996. Mr. Goodwin was also
the former President and General Manager of Beta Steel Corp. from 1998 to 2000.

Leonard M. Anthony has been our Chief Financial OÇcer since May 2003. He has over 25 years of
Ñnancial management experience. He joined Bethlehem Steel Corporation, an integrated steel producer, in
1979 and advanced through increasingly responsible Ñnancial management positions. He served as Corporate
Credit Manager from October 1985 to October 1986, Director of Financial Services from November 1986 to
November 1990, Director Risk Management from December 1990 to February 1993, Manager Financial
Planning from March 1993 to March 1995, Assistant Treasurer from March 1995 to March 1998, Vice
President and Treasurer from October 1999 to September 2001 and Senior Vice President Finance and Chief
Financial OÇcer from October 2001 to May 2003.

Lonnie A. Arnett joined ISG in November 2003 and currently serves as our Vice President, Controller
and Chief Accounting OÇcer. He worked at Bethlehem from 1984 until October 2003, most recently in a
similar capacity. Mr. Arnett has 35 years of experience in accounting and Ñnance with over 25 years being in
the steel industry.

William Brake, Jr. was appointed Vice President & General Manager of ISG Cleveland Inc. in January
2004 and previously served as our General Manager of ISG Cleveland Inc. since March 2003. Since April
2002, he was Division Manager Hot Rolling Operations, Cleveland. Prior to that, he worked for LTV Steel
Corp., an integrated steel producer, where he served as Manager Hot Strip Mill, Cleveland.

Robert J. Dalrymple has been our Vice President, Engineering & Services since April 2002. Prior to
joining us, Mr. Dalrymple served as Vice President of Steel at Minnesota Iron & Steel, Inc., a steel sheet
mini-mill from May 1999 to April 2002 and Manager, Maintenance & Engineering at Nucor Steel Inc., a
mini-mill steel producer, from June 1995 to May 1999.

Brian D. Kurtz has been our Vice President, Finance and Treasurer since January 2004 having previously
served as Vice President & Corporate Controller since May 2003 and Assistant Vice President & Corporate
Controller since April 12, 2002. Prior to joining the company, Mr. Kurtz served as the Division Controller of
Nucor Steel Corporation, a mini-mill steel producer, from September 1999 to April 2002 and as Division
Accountant from December 1995 to September 1999.

John D. LeÖer joined ISG in March 2003 and served as a Transition Leader at Bethlehem Steel
Corporation's Sparrows Point facility. In May 2003 he was named Vice President & General Manager of ISG
Sparrows Point. Prior to that time, Mr. LeÖer was the President and Chief Executive OÇcer of Minnesota
Iron & Steel, Inc., a steel sheet mini-mill, from March 1999 to March 2003. He has over 36 years in the
American steel industry, including service with Gulf State Steel, an integrated steel mill, where he served as
Vice President Manufacturing from 1986 to 1992, Executive Vice President and General Manager from 1992
to 1993 and President and Chief Executive OÇcer from 1999 to 2003. Prior to that, Mr. LeÖer was employed
with U.S. Steel from 1976 to 1986 in various management positions, including Chief Industrial Engineer,
Superintendent, Director Strategic Planning and Plant Manager.

John C. Mang III has been our Vice President & General Manager, ISG Burns Harbor since May 2003.
Prior to that time, Mr. Mang was the Vice President & General Manager, ISG Cleveland from April 2002 to
May 2003. He has also served as Director of ISG Cleveland, Inc. and ISG Warren, Inc. since May 2002 until
January 2004. Previously, he worked at LTV Steel Corp., an integrated steel producer, where he served as
Senior Vice President of Flat Rolled Operations from February 2001 to March 2002, Vice President and
General Manager of Cleveland from April 1998 to February 2001, and as Vice President of L-S Electro-
Galvanizing Company from August 1999 to March 2002.
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Jerome V. Nelson has served as our Vice President, Sales & Marketing since April 2002. Prior to that, he
was employed with Birmingham Steel Corporation, a mini-mill steel producer, where he served as Vice
President, Sales & Marketing from December 2001 to March 2002 and General Sales Manager from August
2000 to December 2001. Previously Mr. Nelson was employed with Nucor Steel Corporation, a mini-mill steel
producer, as Sales Manager from November 1992 to August 2000. Mr. Nelson began his sales career in the
metals industry at LTV Steel in July 1983, worked for Bethlehem Steel Corporation from July 1988 to July
1992, and worked for Armco Advanced Materials from July 1992 to November 1992.

Gordon C. Spelich has been our Vice President, Business Development since April 2002. Prior to joining
the company, Mr. Spelich worked as an independent consultant serving the steel industry from September
2001 until April 2002. Prior to that, Mr. Spelich served as Vice President of Operations at Pechiney Rolled
Products, an aluminum rolling company and a Division of Pechiney S.A. from March 2000 to September 2001
and Manager, Operations at Nucor Steel, a mini-mill steel producer, from October 1991 to March 2000.

Karen A. Smith is our Vice President & Corporate Manager Human Resources since January 2004 and
previously served as Assistant Vice President & Corporate Manager Human Resources since April 2002. Prior
to that, she held various positions in Human Resources and BeneÑts at Pechiney Rolled Products, LLC from
October 1992 to March 2002, including BeneÑts Administrator, BeneÑts Manager, and Manager BeneÑts and
Compensation.

Thomas F. Wood is our Vice President & Corporate Manager Labor Relations since January 2004 and
previously served as Assistant Vice President & Corporate Manager Labor Relations since April 2002. Prior to
that, he worked for LTV Steel Corp., an integrated steel producer, where he served as Manager Industrial
Relations, Cleveland from December 2000 to April 2002 and Manager Industrial Relations, Indiana Harbor
from August 1993 to December 2000.

William C. Bartholomay has served as a director of the company since April 2002. Mr. Bartholomay
currently serves as Vice Chairman of Willis Group Holdings, Inc., an insurance brokerage and Ñnancial
services company, which he joined on August 6, 2003. Prior to that time he served as the President of Near
North National Group, an insurance brokerage and Ñnancial services company, a position which he had held
for more than Ñve years. Mr. Bartholomay also serves as the Chairman of the Board of the Atlanta Braves
baseball team and as a director of both WMS Industries Inc., a gaming manufacturer, and Midway Games
Inc., a publisher of entertainment software.

On December 29, 2000, LTV and substantially all of its domestic subsidiaries Ñled separate petitions for
reorganization under Chapter 11 of the Code in bankruptcy court, and on October 15, 2001, Bethlehem and 22
of its subsidiaries Ñled separate petitions for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the Code in bankruptcy court.
As described above, some of our oÇcers were employed by LTV or Bethlehem at the time those companies
Ñled for bankruptcy.

Code of Ethics; Committee Charters; Corporate Governance Guidelines

ISG has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, which is applicable to all employees, including
ISG's principal executive oÇcer, principal Ñnancial oÇcer and principal accounting oÇcer. Any person may
request a free copy of the Code by writing to:

International Steel Group Inc.
Attention: Investor Relations
3250 Interstate Drive
RichÑeld, Ohio 44286

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated and made part hereof by reference to the material
appearing under the heading ""Executive Compensation'' in ISG's Proxy Statement, which will be Ñled, with
the SEC not later than 120 days after the end of our Ñscal year.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneÑcial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

The information required by this item is incorporated and made part hereof by reference to the material
appearing under the heading ""Security Ownership of Directors and Executive OÇcers'' and ""Equity
Compensation Plan Information'' in ISG's Proxy Statement which will be Ñled with the SEC not later than
120 days after the end of our Ñscal year.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item is incorporated and made part hereof by reference to the material
appearing under the heading ""Certain Relationships and Related Transactions'' in ISG's Proxy Statement
which will be Ñled with the SEC not later than 120 days after the end of our Ñscal year.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated and made part hereof by reference to the material
appearing under the heading ""Accounting Fees and Services'' in ISG's Proxy Statement which will be Ñled
with the SEC not later than 120 days after the end of our Ñscal year.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K.

(a) Documents Ñled as part of this Report:

The following is an index of the Ñnancial statements, schedules and exhibits included in this Report or
incorporated herein by reference.

(1) Financial Statements and Schedules

Independent Auditors' Report ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ F-1

Consolidated Statements of Operations, for the year ended December 31, 2003 and for
the period from inception, February 22, 2002, through December 31, 2002ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ F-2

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ F-3

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the year ended December 31, 2003
and for the period from inception, February 22, 2002, through December 31, 2002 ÏÏÏÏ F-4

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, for the year ended December 31, 2003 and for
the period from inception, February 22, 2002, through December 31, 2002ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ F-5

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ F-6

(2) Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules

II Ì Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves, for the year ended
December 31, 2003 and for the period from inception, February 22, 2002, through
December 31, 2002 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ F-27

Schedules not included have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is
shown in the consolidated Ñnancial statement or notes.

Separate Ñnancial statements of subsidiaries not consolidated and 50 percent or less owned persons
accounted for by the equity method have been omitted because, considered in the aggregate as a single
subsidiary, they do not constitute a signiÑcant subsidiary.
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(3) Exhibits

Exhibit
Number Description of Document

3.1 Third Amended and Restated CertiÑcate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1
to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-107524), as amended).

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant's
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-107524), as amended).

4.1 Specimen certiÑcate for shares of common stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-107524), as amended).

4.2 Form of Registration Rights Agreement by and among ISG and the investors party thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Reg. No. 333-107524), as amended).

4.3 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May 6, 2003, by and between ISG and the Pension
BeneÑt Guaranty Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant's Registra-
tion Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-107524), as amended).

4.4 Convertible Subordinated Promissory Note, dated as of May 6, 2003, by ISG, as Maker and the
Pension BeneÑt Guaranty Corporation, as Payee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the
Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-107524), as amended).

10.1 Credit and Guaranty Agreement, dated as of May 7, 2003, by and among International Steel Group
Inc., as a Guarantor, ISG Acquisition Inc., ISG Cleveland Inc., ISG Hennepin Inc., ISG Indiana
Harbor Inc., ISG Warren Inc., ISG Riverdale Inc., ISG Plate Inc., ISG Piedmont Inc., ISG Burns
Harbor, Inc., ISG Sparrows Point Inc., ISG Steelton Inc., and ISG Lackawanna Inc., as Borrowers,
certain subsidiaries of the company, as Guarantors, the Lenders party thereto from time to time, UBS
Securities LLC, as Joint Lead Arranger and Joint Bookrunner, UBS AG, Stamford Branch, as
Administrative Agent, Goldman Sachs Credit Partners L.P., as Joint Lead Arranger, Joint Bookrun-
ner and Syndication Agent, The CIT Group/Business Credit, Inc., as Collateral Agent, Fleet Capital
Corporation, as Co-Documentation Agent and LaSalle Bank National Association, as Co-Documen-
tation Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-107524), as amended).

10.2 First Amendment to Credit and Guaranty Agreement, dated as of August 6, 2003, by and among
International Steel Group Inc., as a Guarantor, ISG Acquisition Inc., ISG Cleveland Inc., ISG
Riverdale Inc., ISG Plate Inc., ISG Piedmont Inc., ISG Burns Harbor, Inc., ISG Sparrows Point
Inc., ISG Steelton Inc., and ISG Lackawanna Inc., as Borrowers, certain subsidiaries of the
company, as Guarantors, the Lenders party thereto from time to time, UBS Securities LLC, as Joint
Lead Arranger and Joint Bookrunner, UBS AG, Stamford Branch, as Administrative Agent,
Goldman Sachs Credit Partners L.P., as Joint Lead Arranger, Joint Bookrunner and Syndication
Agent, The CIT Group/Business Credit, Inc., as Collateral Agent, Fleet Capital Corporation, as Co-
Documentation Agent and LaSalle Bank National Association, as Co-Documentation Agent (incor-
porated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg.
No. 333-107524), as amended).

10.3 Second Amendment and Limited Waiver to Credit and Guaranty Agreement, dated as of Septem-
ber 30, 2003, by and among International Steel Group Inc., as a Guarantor, ISG Acquisition
Inc., ISG Cleveland Inc., ISG Hennepin Inc., ISG Indiana Harbor Inc., ISG Warren Inc., ISG
Riverdale Inc., ISG Plate Inc., ISG Piedmont Inc., ISG Burns Harbor, Inc., ISG Sparrows Point
Inc., ISG Steelton Inc., and ISG Lackawanna Inc., as Borrowers, certain subsidiaries of the
company, as Guarantors, the Lenders party thereto from time to time, UBS Securities LLC, as Joint
Lead Arranger and Joint Bookrunner, UBS AG, Stamford Branch, as Administrative Agent,
Goldman Sachs Credit Partners L.P., as Joint Lead Arranger, Joint Bookrunner and Syndication
Agent, The CIT Group/Business Credit, Inc., as Collateral Agent, Fleet Capital Corporation, as Co-
Documentation Agent and LaSalle Bank National Association, as Co-Documentation Agent (incor-
porated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg.
No. 333-107524), as amended).
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Exhibit
Number Description of Document

10.4 Amended and Restated International Steel Group Inc. OÇcer Cash and Stock Bonus Plan dated as
of July 16, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant's Registration Statement
on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-107524), as amended).

10.5 2002 Stock Option Plan of International Steel Group Inc. dated as of June 28, 2002 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg.
No. 333-107524), as amended).

10.6 Release and Settlement Agreement, dated April 22, 2003, by and between International Steel Group
Inc. and the Pension BeneÑt Guaranty Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the
Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-107524), as amended).

10.7 Pellet Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 10, 2002 by and among Cleveland-CliÅs Iron
Company, CliÅs Mining Company, Northshore Mining Company, Northshore Sales Company, ISG
Cleveland Inc. and ISG Indiana Harbor, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the
Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-107524), as amended).

10.8 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 26, 2002, by and among WLR Acquisition Corp.,
LTV Steel Company, Inc., The River Terminal Railway Company, The Chicago Short Line Railway
Company, and Cuyahoga Valley Railway (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the
Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-107524), as amended).

10.9 First Amendment to the Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 11, 2002, by and among WLR
Acquisition Corp., LTV Steel Company, Inc., The River Terminal Railway Company, The Chicago
Short Line Railway Company, and Cuyahoga Valley Railway (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-107524), as
amended).

10.10 Second Amendment to the Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 4, 2002, by and among WLR
Acquisition Corp., LTV Steel Company, Inc., The River Terminal Railway Company, The Chicago
Short Line Railway Company, and Cuyahoga Valley Railway (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-107524), as
amended).

10.11 Third Amendment to the Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 8, 2002, by and among WLR
Acquisition Corp., LTV Steel Company, Inc., The River Terminal Railway Company, The Chicago
Short Line Railway Company, and Cuyahoga Valley Railway (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.11 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-107524), as
amended).

10.12 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 12, 2003, by and among ISG, ISG Acquisition, Inc.,
Bethlehem, and the other sellers named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the
Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-107524), as amended).

10.13 Amendment No. 1 to Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 22, 2003, by and among
ISG, ISG Acquisition, Inc., Bethlehem, and the other sellers named therein (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No.
333-107524), as amended).

10.14 Amendment No. 2 to Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 6, 2003, by and among ISG, ISG
Acquisition, Inc., Bethlehem, and the other sellers named therein (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.14 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-107524), as
amended).

10.15 Form of IndemniÑcation Agreement with directors of ISG (incorporated by reference to Ex-
hibit 10.17 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-107524), as
amended).

10.16 Form of IndemniÑcation Agreement with oÇcers of ISG (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18
to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-107524), as amended).

10.17 Form of IndemniÑcation Agreement with a person who is both an oÇcer and director of ISG
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Reg. No. 333-107524), as amended).

21.1 List of Subsidiaries.
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Exhibit
Number Description of Document

23.1 Independent Auditors' Consent.

24.1 Power of Attorney.

31.1 CertiÑcation by the Chief Executive OÇcer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934.

31.2 CertiÑcation by the Chief Financial OÇcer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934.

32.1 CertiÑcation pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(b) Report on Form 8-K

ISG Ñled the following Current Reports on Form 8-K during the fourth quarter of 2003:

None
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

INTERNATIONAL STEEL GROUP INC.

By: /s/ LEONARD M. ANTHONY

Leonard M. Anthony
Chief Financial OÇcer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the
following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature Title Date

* President, Chief Executive OÇcer and March 11, 2004
Director (Principal Executive OÇcer)Rodney B. Mott

/s/ LEONARD M. ANTHONY Chief Financial OÇcer (Principal March 11, 2004
Financial OÇcer)Leonard M. Anthony

* Vice President, Corporate Controller March 11, 2004
and Chief Accounting OÇcerLonnie A. Arnett
(Principal Accounting OÇcer)

 * Chairman of the Board of Directors March 11, 2004
and DirectorWilbur L. Ross, Jr.

* Director March 11, 2004

William C. Bartholomay

* The undersigned, pursuant to a power of attorney, executed by each of the oÇcers and directors above
and Ñled with the SEC herewith, by signing his name hereto, does hereby sign this report on behalf of each of
the persons noted above in the capacities indicated.

By: /s/ LEONARD M. ANTHONY

Name: Leonard M. Anthony
Title: Attorney-in-Fact
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
International Steel Group Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of International Steel Group Inc. and
subsidiaries (Company) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders' equity and cash Öows for the year ended December 31, 2003 and the period from
inception, February 22, 2002, through December 31, 2002. These consolidated Ñnancial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
Ñnancial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Ñnancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Ñnancial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and signiÑcant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall Ñnancial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated Ñnancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the Ñnancial position of International Steel Group Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and
2002, and the results of their operations and their cash Öows for the year ended December 31, 2003 and the
period from inception, February 22, 2002, through December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

 

Cleveland, Ohio
March 9, 2004
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INTERNATIONAL STEEL GROUP INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Period
from Inception
February 22

Year Ended through
December 31, December 31,

2003 2002

(Dollars in millions,
except per share data)

Net sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $4,070.0 $933.1

Costs and expenses:

Cost of sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,836.9 755.3

Marketing, administrative, and other expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 153.6 50.2

Depreciation and amortization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 76.0 11.0

Total costs and expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,066.5 816.5

Income from operationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3.5 116.6

Interest and other Ñnancing expense, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 50.9 2.6

(Loss) income before income taxesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (47.4) 114.0

(BeneÑt) provision for income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (23.9) 45.9

Net (loss) income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (23.5) $ 68.1

Deemed dividend on conversion of Class B common stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (73.6) Ì

Net (loss) income applicable to common stockÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (97.1) $ 68.1

(Loss) income per common share:

Basic ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (1.26) $ 1.02

DilutedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (1.26) $ 0.99

See accompanying notes to consolidated Ñnancial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL STEEL GROUP INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2003 and 2002

2003 2002

(Dollars in millions,
except per share data)

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 193.6 $ 9.8

Receivables, less allowances of $36.6 and $7.3 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 553.9 148.8

Inventories ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 866.8 203.9

Assets held for saleÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 68.6 16.1

Prepaid and other current assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 24.5 15.7

Total current assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,707.4 394.3

Property, plant and equipment, netÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 861.9 244.8

Investments in joint venturesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 27.0 14.1

Other assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 38.7 14.9

Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $2,635.0 $668.1

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt and capital leases ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 46.8 $ 1.1

Accounts payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 427.9 117.8

Accrued compensation and beneÑts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 212.9 30.5

Other current liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 143.9 84.7

Total current liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 831.5 234.1

Long term liabilities:

Debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 362.8 68.4

Capital leasesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 212.7 Ì

Environmental liabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 161.2 44.5

Pensions and other retiree beneÑts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 101.0 0.3

Other obligationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 16.6 16.6

Total liabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,685.8 363.9

Stockholders' equity:

Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value per share, authorized 5,000 shares, none issued ÏÏÏ Ì Ì

Common Stock, $0.01 par value per share, authorized 108,600,000 shares,
97,470,609 and 69,663,280 issued and outstanding 1.0 0.7

Additional paid-in capitalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 972.2 235.4

Retained (deÑcit) earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (29.0) 68.1

Accumulated other comprehensive income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.0 Ì

Total stockholders' equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 949.2 304.2

Total liabilities and stockholders' equityÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $2,635.0 $668.1

See accompanying notes to consolidated Ñnancial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL STEEL GROUP INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003 and the period from inception, February 22, 2002, through

December 31, 2002

Accumulated
Other Total

Class B Common Additional Retained Compre- Stock-
Common Stock Stock Paid-in Earnings hensive holders'

Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital (DeÑcit) Income Equity

(Dollars in millions)

Balance, February 22, 2002 Ì $ Ì Ì $ Ì $ Ì $ Ì $ Ì $ Ì

Proceeds from equity
oÅering on April 22 ÏÏÏ 64,874,020 0.7 Ì Ì 174.3 Ì Ì 175.0

Proceeds from equity
oÅering on October 10 4,789,260 Ì Ì Ì 61.1 Ì Ì 61.1

Net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì 68.1 Ì 68.1

Balance, December 31, 2002 69,663,280 $0.7 Ì $ Ì $235.4 $ 68.1 $ Ì $304.2

Proceeds from Class B
Common Stock equity
oÅering on May 7 ÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 7,994,623 0.1 156.6 Ì Ì 156.7

Class B Common Stock
issued upon Bethlehem
acquisition ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 765,306 Ì 15.0 Ì Ì 15.0

Proceeds from stock
option exerciseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 72,400 Ì Ì Ì 0.2 Ì Ì 0.2

Proceeds from initial
public equity oÅering
on December 12 ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 18,975,000 0.2 Ì Ì 491.4 Ì Ì 491.6

Conversion of Class B
Common Stock to
Common Stock with
initial public equity
oÅering on
December 12 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8,759,929 0.1 (8,759,929) (0.1) Ì Ì Ì Ì

Deemed dividend on
Class B Common Stock 73.6 (73.6) Ì Ì

Net gains on derivative
instruments designated
as cash Öow hedgesÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì 5.0 5.0

Net loss ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì (23.5) Ì (23.5)

Balance, December 31, 2003 97,470,609 $1.0 Ì $ Ì $972.2 $(29.0) $5.0 $949.2

See accompanying notes to consolidated Ñnancial statements.

F-4



INTERNATIONAL STEEL GROUP INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Period
from Inception

February 22, 2002
Year Ended through

December 31, December 31,
2003 2002

(Dollars in millions)

Cash Öows from operating activities:

Net (loss) income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (23.5) $ 68.1

Adjustments for items not aÅecting cash from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 76.0 11.0

Deferred income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 20.5 (5.3)

Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 16.2 (7.0)

Changes in working capital and other items:

Receivables ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 11.2 (145.7)

InventoriesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 67.5 (151.5)

Accounts payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 58.5 56.3

Accrued income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (74.0) 30.1

Pension and other retiree beneÑts expense more than payments ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 67.9 0.3

Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 68.6 32.1

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 288.9 (111.6)

Cash Öows from investing activities:

Capital expenditures and investments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (96.9) (48.1)

Acquisitions, net of cash receivedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (822.6) (144.3)

Proceeds from sales of assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 34.3 14.3

Net cash used in investing activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (885.2) (178.1)

Cash Öows from Ñnancing activities:

Borrowings under revolving credit facility ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 941.6 867.9

Payments under revolving credit facility ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1,002.3) (807.2)

Proceeds from long-term debtÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 710.0 8.8

Payments on long-term debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (469.3) Ì

Payments on capital leases ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (23.7) Ì

Issuance of common stock, netÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 648.5 236.2

Deferred Ñnancing fees ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (24.7) (6.2)

Net cash provided by Ñnancing activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 780.1 299.5

Increase in cash and cash equivalents ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 183.8 9.8

Cash and cash equivalents Ì beginning of period ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 9.8 Ì

Cash and cash equivalents Ì end of period ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 193.6 $ 9.8

Other information:

Interest paid ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 34.3 $ 1.4

Interest capitalized ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.4 0.3

Income taxes paid ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 30.0 21.2

Capital lease obligation incurredÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.2 Ì

See accompanying notes to consolidated Ñnancial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL STEEL GROUP INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2003 and 2002

(Dollars in millions, except per share data)

(1) Summary of SigniÑcant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation

These consolidated Ñnancial statements include the accounts of International Steel Group Inc. and its
consolidated subsidiaries (ISG or the Company). All signiÑcant intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation. Investments in joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting, except an iron ore-mining venture, which is pro rata consolidated. Certain prior period amounts
have been reclassiÑed to conform to the current period presentation.

(b) Nature of Operations

ISG was organized in February 2002 to acquire the principal steelmaking and steel Ñnishing assets from
The LTV Corporation (LTV) and began operations in April 2002. In October 2002, ISG acquired the
compact strip mill and basic oxygen furnace of Acme Steel Corporation (Acme). In May 2003, ISG acquired
substantially all the assets of Bethlehem Steel Corporation and subsidiaries (Bethlehem). See Note 2,
Acquisitions, for additional information. ISG is a domestic manufacturer of light Öat-rolled, plate and rail steel
products whose customers are located primarily in the United States of America. ISG reports its activities as a
single segment and serves the automotive, appliance, transportation, machinery and construction markets,
either directly or through steel service centers.

(c) Revenue Recognition

Substantially all revenue is recognized at the time products are shipped and all substantial risks of
ownership are transferred to the customer.

(d) Stock Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock based compensation under the fair value method as permitted under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123, Accounting for Stock Based Compensation.

(e) Amortization of Debt Issue Costs

The Company capitalizes certain debt issuance costs and amortizes them on a straight-line basis over the
expected term of the debt. In the event of an early termination of debt, the unamortized amounts are expensed
in the period of termination.

(f) Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method that requires deferred income taxes
to reÖect the future tax consequences attributable to diÅerences between the tax and Ñnancial reporting bases
of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized are based on the tax rates in eÅect in the
year in which diÅerences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance
when, in the opinion of management based on available evidence, it is more likely than not that some or all of
any net deferred tax assets will not be realized.

(g) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted earnings per common share include the net incremental shares issuable upon the
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INTERNATIONAL STEEL GROUP INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

assumed exercise of stock options and conversion of convertible debt as if the conversion occurred at the
beginning of the period.

(h) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly liquid instruments with an original maturity of three months
or less and are carried at cost, which approximates market value.

(i) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the last-in, Ñrst-out
(LIFO) method of accounting for about 20% of the inventories at December 31, 2003 and the balance is
determined using the Ñrst-in, Ñrst-out (FIFO) or average cost method. We plan to adopt LIFO for all
inventories in 2004. The components of inventories follow:

December 31,

2003 2002

FIFO or average cost:

Raw materialsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $291.0 $ 75.1

Finished and semi-Ñnished goodsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 612.0 150.4

903.0 225.5

LIFO reserve ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (36.2) (21.6)

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $866.8 $203.9

During 2003, liquidation of LIFO inventory quantities reduced cost of sales by about $9.0. Inventories
acquired in a business combination were valued at fair market value less, for in-process and Ñnished goods,
costs to complete processing and a reasonable proÑt for selling eÅorts. As a result, the value assigned to
inventory acquired from Bethlehem, see Note 2, Acquisitions, and cost of sales for 2003 were $40.8 higher
than our production costs.

(j) Assets Held for Sale

Properties expected to be sold within one year are recorded as assets held for sale at the lower of the
carrying value or fair value, less costs to sell. These assets are not depreciated while classiÑed as held for sale.
The net expense relating to all assets classiÑed as held for sale was $7.0 and $0.6 in 2003 and 2002.

(k) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives are 20 years for buildings and range from 3 to
10 years for machinery and equipment. Repairs and maintenance that do not signiÑcantly improve or extend
the lives of the respective assets are expensed as incurred throughout the year.
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INTERNATIONAL STEEL GROUP INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

The components of Property, plant and equipment, net follow:

December 31,

2003 2002

Land and land improvements ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 31.5 $ 17.0

Buildings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 70.0 21.7

Machinery and equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 796.6 206.0

Construction in progress ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 50.2 11.1

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 948.3 255.8

Accumulated depreciation and amortizationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (86.4) (11.0)

Total property, plant and equipment, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $861.9 $244.8

(l) Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets are subject to an impairment assessment if there are circumstances that indicate the
carrying amount may no longer be recoverable from future operations or sale. The amount of the impairment
recognized, if any, is the diÅerence between the carrying amount and the fair value of the asset.

(m) Contingencies

Liabilities for loss contingencies, including environmental remediation costs, arising from claims,
assessments, litigation, Ñnes and penalties and other sources are recorded when it is probable that a liability
has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

The Company's estimates of environmental remediation liabilities are based on current technology and
existing laws and regulations and site-speciÑc estimated costs. The liabilities recognized under business
combination accounting were recorded at their net present value. These amounts are adjusted for accretion of
the discount and when the eÅect of new information or changes in law or technology can be reasonably
estimated. Required future recognition of any environmental liabilities relating to currently owned properties
will not be discounted.

(n) Use of Estimates

The preparation of Ñnancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires that management make estimates and assumptions that aÅect the amounts
reported in the Ñnancial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could diÅer from these estimates.

(o) Market Risk

ISG is exposed to Öuctuations in interest rates and the prices of certain commodities such as natural gas,
fuel oil, coke, steel scrap, iron ore and various non-ferrous metals. Management is authorized to use various
Ñnancial instruments where available to manage the exposures associated with these Öuctuations. ISG may
employ the use of futures, forwards, collars, options and swaps to manage certain exposures when practical. By
policy, ISG does not enter into such contracts for the purpose of speculation. These policies include
establishing a risk management philosophy and objectives, providing guidelines for derivative usage and
establishing procedures for control and reporting of derivative activity. The change in value of the eÅective
portion of Ñnancial instruments used to hedge certain exposures is reported as a component of other
comprehensive income and is reclassiÑed into earnings in the same period during which the hedged
transactions aÅect earnings.
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INTERNATIONAL STEEL GROUP INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

(p) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.
Interpretation No. 46 as revised in December 2003, addresses consolidation by business enterprises of variable
interest entities and requires existing unconsolidated variable interest entities to be consolidated by their
primary beneÑciaries if the entities do not eÅectively disperse risk among parties involved. It is based on the
concept that companies that control another entity through interests other than voting interests should
consolidate the controlled entity. Interpretation No. 46 and its revision did not have an eÅect on the
Company's consolidated Ñnancial position, results of operations or cash Öows.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities. SFAS No. 149 amends and clariÑes the accounting for derivative instruments,
including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities under
SFAS 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. SFAS No. 149 is generally eÅective
for contracts entered into or modiÑed after June 30, 2003 and for hedging relationships designated after
June 30, 2003. The adoption of SFAS No. 149 did not have an eÅect on the Company's consolidated Ñnancial
position, results of operations or cash Öows.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity. SFAS No. 150 requires that certain Ñnancial instruments,
which under previous guidance were accounted for as equity, must now be accounted for as liabilities. The
Ñnancial instruments aÅected include mandatory redeemable stock, certain Ñnancial instruments that require
or may require the issuer to buy back some of its shares of stock in exchange for cash or other assets and
certain obligations that can be settled with shares of stock. SFAS No. 150 is eÅective for all Ñnancial
instruments entered into or modiÑed after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is eÅective at the beginning of the Ñrst
interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption of SFAS No. 150 did not have an eÅect on the
Company's consolidated Ñnancial position, results of operations or cash Öows.

In December 2003, the FASB revised SFAS No. 132 (revised 2003), Employers' Disclosures about
Pensions and Other Postemployment BeneÑts. SFAS No. 132 (revised 2003) requires additional disclosure on
the assets, obligations, cash Öows and net periodic beneÑt cost of deÑned beneÑt pension plans and other
deÑned beneÑt postretirement plans in the notes to consolidated Ñnancial statements. The disclosures include
describing the types of plan assets, investment strategy, measurement dates, plan obligations, cash Öows, and
components of net periodic beneÑt cost recognized during interim periods. The Company adopted
SFAS No. 132 (revised 2003) as of December 31, 2003. Since this statement requires changes in disclosure
only, it did not have any eÅect on the Company's consolidated Ñnancial position, results of operations or cash
Öows.

(2) Acquisitions

In 2002, ISG acquired certain steelmaking and Ñnishing assets that had been idled and assumed certain
liabilities of LTV and Acme that were in bankruptcy proceedings. In May 2003, ISG acquired substantially all
the assets and assumed certain liabilities of Bethlehem, which was in bankruptcy proceedings. The acquisition
of the Bethlehem net assets was accounted for as a business combination. Bethlehem's results have been
included in the consolidated Ñnancial results since May 1, 2003.

The following unaudited pro forma data for ISG includes the results of operations of the Bethlehem
acquisition as if it had been consummated on April 1, 2002, including the eÅects of the new labor agreement
as it pertains to the former Bethlehem facilities and the Ñnancings incurred to fund the acquisition. Thus the
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INTERNATIONAL STEEL GROUP INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

unaudited pro forma data is based on historical information and does not necessarily reÖect the actual results
that would have occurred, nor is it indicative of future results of operations.

2003 2002

(Unaudited)

Net sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $5,308.7 $3,701.7

Net incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 75.7 180.5

Net income applicable to common stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2.1 180.5

Income per share

Basic ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.03 $ 2.47

Diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.03 $ 2.37

The purchase agreement included a minimum working capital requirement at closing and requires
Bethlehem to return to ISG any excess cash after all secured, administrative and priority claims in
Bethlehem's bankruptcy case have been paid. As a result, ISG received cash subsequent to the purchase date
from Bethlehem for working capital adjustments and excess cash. Additional amounts could be received
pending resolution of certain legal and contingent issues.

ISG created the transition assistance program to assist departing USWAÓrepresented Bethlehem
employees. This program aÅects about 2,100 former employees and we expect to pay the remaining liability of
$23.6 recorded at December 31, 2003 during 2004. The following amounts have been paid (received) in
connection with the Bethlehem purchase through December 31, 2003:

Cash paid at closing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $752.3

Cash acquired ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (90.2)

Net cash paid at closingÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 662.1

Subsequent required installments paid ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 120.0

USWA transition assistance program payments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 81.6

Cash received for working capital adjustments and amounts not needed for secured,
priority and administrative claims ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (41.1)

Cash paid, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $822.6

ISG has made a preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
or recognized in the Bethlehem purchase based on their estimated fair values. ISG has not yet received all
information expected to determine the Ñnal values to be assigned to all assets and liabilities acquired as it
relates to certain legal and contingent issues. Values currently assigned are based on best estimates. The fair
value of the net assets acquired from Bethlehem was in excess of the purchase price, resulting in negative
goodwill. In accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, the negative goodwill was allocated as a
pro rata reduction of the amounts that would have otherwise been assigned to the acquired non-current assets,
primarily property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, based on their relative fair values.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

The amounts recorded for the net assets acquired follows:

Bethlehem Acme LTV

Acquired assets:

Receivables, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 379.2 $ Ì $ Ì

Inventories ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 730.3 Ì 52.4

Prepaids and other current assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.1 Ì 3.2

Assets held for sale ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 85.7 Ì 30.4

Intangible assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 26.5 Ì Ì

Property, plant and equipmentÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 602.8 67.9 135.2

Other noncurrent assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 15.4 Ì 13.6

1,845.0 67.9 234.8

Acquired liabilities:

Current portion of long term debt and capital lease obligations ÏÏ 32.7 Ì Ì

Accounts payableÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 251.4 Ì Ì

Accrued expenses and other current liabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 130.1 3.9 64.8

Long term debt and capital lease obligations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 358.9 Ì Ì

Long term environmental liabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 144.0 3.1 86.6

Long term pension and retiree beneÑtsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 82.5 Ì Ì

Other long term obligations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7.8 Ì Ì

1,007.4 7.0 151.4

Net assets recorded ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 837.6 60.9 83.4

Value of stock issued ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (15.0) Ì Ì

Cash paid, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 822.6 $60.9 $ 83.4

See Note 4, Income Taxes, regarding federal income tax issues related to the acquisition of the
Bethlehem assets.

Intangible assets consist of $5.5 assigned to patents with an estimated useful life of 16 years and $21.0
assigned to favorable supply contracts that were being amortized over the term of the associated contracts
ranging from one to four years. ISG recognized $11.3 of expense during 2003 related to these intangibles. At
December 31, 2003, the remaining balance of these intangible assets was reduced to zero through a provision
for deferred federal income taxes.

(3) Stock Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation expense for its stock compensation program in accordance with
the fair value method of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, which requires the
recognition of expense for stock based compensation on their fair value on the measurement date.

ISG's Key Employees' Incentive Stock Option Plan provides that common stock options may be granted
to key employees and oÇcers with exercise prices at no less than the market value on the grant date.
Outstanding options vest in four equal annual installments and expire six years after date of grant. The
Company's initial public oÅering of common stock on December 12, 2003 caused vesting of certain options to
be accelerated in 2003. If there is a change of control of 50% or more of the voting stock of the Company, all
remaining unvested options will vest immediately. At December 31, 2003, there were no additional shares
available for future grants. The fair value of options granted in 2003 was determined to be zero. The fair value
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

of the options granted in 2002 is $9.4, of which, $3.3 and $2.9 were recognized as compensation expense
during 2003 and 2002. These fair values were determined on the measurement date using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model under the following assumptions: risk-free rate of return of 3.04%; dividend yield of 0%;
and the options are anticipated to be exercised upon vesting.

2003 2002

Weighted Weighted
Average Average

Shares Price Shares Price

Options outstanding at beginning of the year ÏÏÏÏÏ 7,167,600 $ 2.76 Ì $ Ì

GrantedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,038,940 25.55 7,464,440 2.76

ExercisedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (72,400) 2.76 Ì Ì

Canceled/forfeited ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (760,200) 2.76 (296,840) 2.76

Options outstanding at end of periodÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7,373,940 $ 5.97 7,167,600 $2.76

Options exercisable at end of period ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,619,975 $ 2.76 Ì $ Ì

ISG has a Stock Appreciation Rights Plan (stock rights) for certain key employees that provides
employees a cash payment after vesting for the diÅerence between the stock rights price and the market value
of the stock on the date of exercise, with the award limited to 200% of the stock rights price. Stock rights vest
in four substantially equal installments and expire Ñve years after grant. The Company granted 188,481 and
1,248,900 stock rights and recognized compensation expense of $2.5 and $0.5 during 2003 and 2002.

(4) Income Taxes

The components of the (beneÑt) provision for income taxes follows:

2003 2002

(BeneÑt) provision:

Current

Federal ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(42.5) $42.5

State ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1.9) 8.7

Deferred ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 20.5 (5.3)

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(23.9) $45.9

A reconciliation of the statutory U.S. tax rate to the recorded eÅective tax rate follows:

2003 2002

Taxes at statutory rateÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (35.0)% 35.0%

BeneÑts of acquired tax attributes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (11.7) Ì

DepletionÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (2.8) Ì

State and local income taxes net of federal eÅect ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1.5) 4.6

Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.7 0.7

TaxÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (50.3)% 40.3%
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SigniÑcant components of deferred income tax assets and (liabilities) follow:

December 31,

2003 2002

Temporary diÅerences Ì assets (liabilities):

Plant and equipmentÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 378.2 $ Ì

State deferred income taxesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 163.7 Ì

Environmental liabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 76.3 22.8

Capitalized leases ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 65.8 Ì

Compensation and beneÑts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 48.1 2.0

Accruals and reserves ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 45.0 2.5

Vacation accruals ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 26.2 3.8

Inventories ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 16.1 2.5

Joint ventures ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 15.4 Ì

Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 18.3 14.6

Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 853.1 48.2

Prepaid expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (9.7) Ì

LIFO inventoriesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (5.0) (2.2)

Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (3.5) (0.2)

Plant and equipmentÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (40.5)

Total liabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (18.2) (42.9)

Net operating loss carryforwardsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 399.6 Ì

AMT credit carryfoward ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 25.8 Ì

Valuation allowance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1,260.3) Ì

Net deferred tax asset ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ Ì $ 5.3

Temporary diÅerences represent the cumulative taxable or deductible amounts recorded in the consoli-
dated Ñnancial statements in diÅerent years than recognized in the income tax returns.

The acquisition of the Bethlehem assets was structured as a tax-free reorganization under Internal
Revenue Code (IRC) Section 368 (a)(1)(G). The historic tax attributes of Bethlehem are, therefore, carried
over to the ISG consolidated federal income tax return. These tax attributes are composed principally of net
operating loss (NOL) carryforwards, alternative minimum tax (AMT) credit carryforwards and temporary
diÅerences related to the tax basis of property, plant and equipment. The net deferred tax assets acquired
related to these tax attributes were not recognized at the date of acquisition because there were a number of
required actions related to, among other matters, Bethlehem's plan of liquidation under federal bankruptcy
law. During the fourth quarter of 2003, among other events, the Bankruptcy Court conÑrmed Bethlehem's
plan of liquidation, which subsequently became eÅective on December 31, 2003. Accordingly, in the fourth
quarter, we determined that it was appropriate to recognize the acquired net deferred tax assets and any
related valuation allowance.

IRC Section 382 restricts any excess tax depreciation and other deductions attributable to Bethlehem's
higher historic tax basis for Ñve years and limits the annual utilization of Bethlehem's NOL carryforwards.
Realization of these future tax beneÑts is subject to our ability to generate suÇcient future taxable income and
agreement by the Internal Revenue Service to the transaction structure. We estimate the deferred tax assets
acquired from Bethlehem to be about $1,300.
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SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, requires that we record a valuation allowance when it is
more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate
realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of suÇcient future taxable income during
periods in which those temporary diÅerences become deductible and before the expiration of the NOL
carryforwards. Because of ISG's two-year existence, limited Ñnancial performance and cumulative tax loss
from inception, it is management's judgment that SFAS No. 109 requires the recording of a full valuation
allowance for net deferred tax assets that resulted in a $5.3 provision for deferred income taxes for 2003. The
requirement for this valuation allowance will be evaluated on a regular basis in light of the changing evidence.
In addition, generally accepted accounting principles require that we recognize any tax beneÑts of the
Bethlehem acquisition realized in 2003 through the income statement only after writing oÅ any remaining
intangible assets acquired from Bethlehem. Accordingly, in the fourth quarter of 2003, we wrote oÅ $15.2 of
intangible assets as a provision for deferred income taxes.

In the future, if it is determined that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized
based upon the available evidence, including actual taxable results and other sources of future taxable income,
we will reduce the valuation allowance by providing a federal income tax beneÑt in that year.

At December 31, 2003, ISG had regular tax NOL carryforwards of about $1,060 acquired from
Bethlehem as limited by IRC Section 382, and with about $80 arising in 2003, AMT loss carryforwards
acquired from Bethlehem of about $1,300 and AMT credit carryforwards acquired from Bethlehem of
approximately $25. The NOL and AMT loss carryforwards will expire in varying amounts from 2005 through
2023 if we are unable to generate suÇcient amounts of taxable income in the future. Approximately $630 of
the NOL carryforwards expire between 2005 and 2008. AMT credits can be carried forward indeÑnitely.

(5) Income (loss) per Share

The following table presents calculations of income (loss) per share of common stock:

2003 2002

Net (loss) income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(23.5) $68.1

Deemed dividend on the conversion of Class B common stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (73.6) Ì

Net (loss) income applicable to common stockÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(97.1) $68.1

Weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding Ì Basic ÏÏÏÏ 77.1 66.5

Incremental shares issuable upon assumed conversion ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 2.4

Total shares Ì Diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 77.1 68.9

(Loss) income per share:

Basic ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(1.26) $1.02

Diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(1.26) $0.99

The basic and diluted loss per share are the same for 2003 because incremental shares issuable upon
conversion are anti-dilutive.

The Class B common stock was issued in 2003 for cash and in connection with the acquisition of the
Bethlehem assets. It was identical in all respects to common stock, except that it contained an automatic
conversion to common stock upon ISG's initial public oÅering at a conversion ratio per share equal to
(1) $92,500, divided by (2) the product of (a) the price per share paid by the public in the initial public
oÅering multiplied by (b) 0.7, divided by (3) 3,620. Upon the completion of the oÅering on December 12,
2003, therefore, the Class B common stock automatically converted into 8,759,929 shares of common stock at
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the $28 per share price of the public oÅering. The conversion of the Class B common stock resulted in a one-
time ""deemed dividend'' to the holders of the Class B common stock of $73.6. The ""deemed dividend'' was
recognized on the balance sheet as a reclassiÑcation from retained earnings to paid in capital in excess of par
value. This transaction had no impact on cash Öows or net income. The ""deemed dividend,'' however, is
required to be treated similar to a preferred stock dividend in the calculation of loss per share of common stock
by deducting it from net loss to arrive at net loss applicable to common stock, increasing the 2003 loss per
common share by $0.95 from $0.31 to $1.26.

(6) Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The Company has Ñnancial instruments that are designated as cash Öow hedges for natural gas, the
eÅective portion of the change in value of these Ñnancial instruments is reported as a component of other
comprehensive income and is reclassiÑed into earnings in the same period during which the hedged
transactions aÅect earnings. At December 31, 2003, the Company recognized $5.0 in both prepaid expenses
and in other comprehensive income related to the cash Öow hedges. Total comprehensive loss was $18.5 for
the year ended December 31, 2003.

(7) Long-term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations

Components of long-term debt and capital leases follow:

December 31,

2003 2002

Debt Ì Notes and loans:

Credit Facilities, Tranche B, LIBOR plus 3.5%, Due May 2007ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $266.8 $ Ì

G. E. Facility, Variable, Due May 2006 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 60.7

Columbus Coatings Ñnancing, Variable, Due August 2008 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 57.8 Ì

PBGC convertible note, 6%, Due May 2007 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 35.0 Ì

Coal Act Subordinated Note, 9%, Due September 2005 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7.0 Ì

Industrial Revenue Bonds, 5.8%, Due May 2007ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4.9 6.0

Acme Steel Promissory Note, 7.75%, Due October 2007 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2.8 2.8

Total debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 374.3 69.5

Current portionÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (11.5) (1.1)

Total long-term debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $362.8 $68.4

Capital lease obligations:

Coke oven battery, approximately 5%, payable 2004-2014 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $174.2 $ Ì

Wide slab caster, 9.86%, payable 2004-2005 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 39.2 Ì

Iron ore vessel, 13%, payable 2004-2009ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 21.9 Ì

Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 12.7 Ì

Total capital lease obligationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 248.0 Ì

Current portionÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (35.3) Ì

Total long-term capital lease obligationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $212.7 $ Ì
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The maturities of long-term debt and required capital lease payments at December 31, 2003 follows:

2004 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 46.8

2005 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 63.4

2006 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 32.1

2007 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 345.6

2008 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 37.4

2009 and beyond ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 97.0

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $622.3

ISG had a $200.0 Revolving Credit Facility with GE Capital Commercial Finance (GE Facility) that
was replaced on May 7, 2003. The GE Facility was collateralized by the inventory and accounts receivable of
ISG with interest payable at the option of ISG at the prime rate plus 1.25% or LIBOR plus 2.75%. During the
second quarter 2003, $3.7 of debt issuance costs was expensed related to the early termination of this credit
facility.

In connection with the Bethlehem acquisition, the Company entered into new $1.0 billion credit facilities
(Credit Facilities) that are collateralized by inventory, accounts receivable, real property and capital stock.
The new Credit Facilities consist of a three-year $350.0 revolving credit facility, a two-year $250.0 tranche A
term loan facility and a four-year $400.0 tranche B term loan facility. A total of $700.1 was borrowed under
the facilities at May 7, 2003. Borrowings under the revolving credit facility are subject to overall leverage
ratios and bear interest, at the option of ISG, at a Öoating rate equal to either LIBOR plus a margin ranging
from 2.00% to 3.50% per annum or the Prime rate plus a margin ranging from 1.00% to 2.50% per annum.
Borrowings under the tranche A term loan bore interest at a Öoating rate equal to either LIBOR plus
3.25% per annum or the Prime rate plus 2.25% per annum. The borrowings under the tranche B term loan bear
interest at a Öoating rate equal to either LIBOR plus 3.50% per annum or the Prime rate plus 2.50% per
annum. In October 2003, we amended certain covenants, increasing the interest rates by 0.5 percentage points.
Commitment fees are payable quarterly for the unused portion of the total loan commitment with the rates
ranging from 0.25% to 0.50% per annum. The Company is subject to various Ñnancial covenants including a
minimum borrowing availability, limitations on capital expenditures, minimum Ñxed charges coverage,
maximum leverage ratios, minimum net worth and minimum earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) as deÑned in the agreement governing the Credit Facilities. The revolving credit
facility may be withdrawn if a material adverse eÅect or event of default has occurred and the Company is
unable to remedy the event in a timely manner as deÑned in the agreement.

On December 18, 2003, the tranche A term loan was repaid in full and the $132.1 of the tranche B term
loan was repaid using a portion of the proceeds from ISG's initial public oÅering of common stock as required
by the Credit Facilities. The amounts repaid are not eligible to be borrowed again during the remaining term
of the Credit Facilities.

At December 31, 2003, based on outstanding letters of credit, eligible accounts receivable, and
inventories, the Company had unused borrowing capacity under the revolving credit facility of $239.1 and the
weighted average interest rate on all outstanding borrowings under the facilities was 5.178% per annum.
Payments of dividends are restricted by the minimum Ñxed charges coverage ratio which includes dividend
payments as a component. Amounts available for payment of dividends and other restricted payments at
December 31, 2003 were $52.5.

Also in connection with the Bethlehem acquisition, ISG assumed a credit facility from Columbus
Coatings Corporation, a subsidiary of Bethlehem. Borrowings under the facility bore interest at a Öoating rate
equal to LIBOR plus 5.0% per annum. The facility was paid in full on August 8, 2003, when ISG entered into
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a new loan agreement with GE Capital Corporation for $60.0. The loan bears interest at the greater of
5.75% per annum or the Eurodollar base rate plus a margin of 4.25% per annum. Monthly principal payments
are $0.5 and increase to $1.7 beginning September 15, 2006 through maturity.

The convertible note to the Pension BeneÑt Guaranty Corporation (PBGC) requires semi-annual interest
payments beginning January 1, 2004, and the principal is due in full on May 6, 2007. The note is convertible,
at the PBGC's option, into 29,240.55 shares of ISG's common stock for each $1 of principal and accrued
interest outstanding. At December 31, 2003, the note was eligible to be converted into 1,064,015 shares of ISG
common stock.

The Coal Act subordinated note to the United Mine Workers of America 1992 BeneÑt Plan and the
UMWA Combined BeneÑt Fund was paid in full in January 2004.

The industrial development bonds bear interest at 5.8% and require monthly sinking fund payments of
$0.1 for principal and interest beginning in December 2002. These bonds are secured by the Cleveland plant
facilities.

The promissory note payable to Acme was paid in full in January 2004.

The amounts included in property, plant and equipment for capital leases were $179.4 (net of $11.3 of
accumulated amortization) at December 31, 2003. The capital lease on a coke oven battery at the Burns
Harbor facility requires payments in 2004 based on the cost and amount of coke production, which is
estimated to be $25.6 and minimum monthly payments of $0.5 beginning in January 2005 with additional
payments based on coke production. The capital lease on the slab caster at the Sparrows Point facility requires
quarterly payments of $2.3 in 2004 with the balance due in 2005. The capital lease on an ore vessel requires
monthly payments of $0.5.

The Company believes that the carrying amount of its long-term debt at December 31, 2003 approxi-
mates fair market value.

(8) Contingencies

ISG is subject to various legal actions and contingencies in the normal course of conducting business.
ISG recognizes liabilities for such matters when a loss is likely and the amount can be reasonably estimated.
The eÅect of the ultimate outcome of these matters on future results of operations and liquidity cannot be
predicted with any certainty. While the resolution of these matters may have a material eÅect on the results of
operations of a particular quarter or year, the Company believes that the ultimate resolution of such matters in
excess of liabilities recorded will not have a material adverse eÅect on its competitive position or Ñnancial
position.

ISG is subject to changing and increasingly stringent environmental laws and regulations concerning air
emissions, water discharges and waste disposal, as well as certain remediation activities that involve the clean
up of environmental media such as soils and groundwater. If, in the future, the Company is required to
investigate and remediate any currently unknown contamination and wastes at plant sites, ISG could be
required to record additional liabilities.

Undiscounted environmental liabilities related to the acquisition of the net assets from Bethlehem, Acme
and LTV in the amount of $337.6 were recorded at their fair value based on their net present value determined
using an 8% discount rate, resulting in recorded environmental liabilities of $216.2 at the acquisition dates.
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The table below represents the amounts recorded for environmental liabilities discounted at 8%:

2003 2002

Beginning balance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 56.4 $ Ì

Liabilities recognized at acquisitionÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 159.0 57.2

Accretion and changes in estimates and timing of spendingÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.0 3.5

Spending for remediation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (8.0) (4.3)

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 208.4 56.4

Total current portion included in other current liabiltiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (47.2) (11.9)

Long term balance at year endÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $161.2 $ 44.5

The 2003 current portion includes $13.5 related to assets held for sale.

Environmental expenditures related to these liabilities for the next Ñve years and thereafter are expected
to be:

2004 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 47.2

2005 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 25.7

2006 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 37.0

2007 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 19.8

2008 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 17.1

2009 and thereafterÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 168.6

Total Ì undiscountedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $315.4

These accrued environmental liabilities relate principally to locations in Lackawanna, New York;
Sparrows Point, Maryland; Western Pennsylvania; Johnstown, Pennsylvania; Indiana Harbor, Indiana; Burns
Harbor, Indiana; and Cleveland, Ohio.

At Lackawanna, we own a site where an integrated steel facility operated until 1983 and a coke oven
operated until 2001. The Company anticipates performing a corrective measures study and implementing the
likely required corrective measures after approval by appropriate environmental authorities. The estimated
undiscounted cost for continuation of required studies and likely remediation and post remediation activities is
$72.

At Sparrows Point, ISG assumed the comprehensive multimedia pollution prevention agreement entered
into by Bethlehem in 1997. The agreement requires, among other matters, compliance, closure and post-
closure care of two landÑlls, a site wide investigation that is nearing completion of a facilities investigation
under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) and continuation of certain remediation
systems. The estimated undiscounted cost to comply with this agreement and likely remediation required
excluding capital expenditures is $43.

Idled mining operations located in western Pennsylvania near Johnstown will require the prevention of
acid mine drainage from discharging into surface waters. To comply with these obligations, the Company will
pump and treat acid mine drainage from Ñve closed mines and one coal refuse disposal area. The estimated
undiscounted cost of the treatment combined with the establishment of required Ñnancial assurance for the
long-term operation and maintenance of facilities at the mines is $32.

We own a large former integrated steelmaking site in Johnstown, Pennsylvania. Although subject to
RCRA corrective action, no comprehensive environmental investigations have been performed at this site to
date. The site has been razed and there are a number of historic waste disposal facilities located at the site that
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are subject to state regulation and historic operations that may have caused groundwater contamination. We
estimate undiscounted costs associated with the future investigations and likely remediation of the site that
can be estimated to be $23.

Our Indiana Harbor facility is under an administrative order requiring development and implementation
of a monitoring program to assess soil and groundwater conditions associated with 14 solid waste management
units. It is not possible to estimate the costs of monitoring and remediation that may be required as a result of
this investigation. There is an area of fuel contamination and solid waste landÑll at the facility that requires
remediation, closure and post closure care. The undiscounted cost of these activities combined with the cost of
other administratively required site assessments and investigative studies that can be estimated is $22.

At Burns Harbor, air pollution control dusts and sludges in piles on the ground are likely to require oÅsite
disposal, although alternative means are currently being evaluated. The estimated undiscounted cost of the
corrective action combined with the costs to complete certain other studies and likely corrective actions is $22.

An integrated steel facility has operated at our Cleveland facility since the early part of the 20th century.
As a result, soil and groundwater contamination exists that will likely require remediation. No corrective
action has been demanded by any government authority and no comprehensive investigation of any of the
facilities has been performed. Nevertheless, a large permitted solid waste landÑll at the site will likely require
closure and post-closure care in the future. The estimated undiscounted cost for this landÑll combined with
the other study costs and likely remediation requirements is $14.

There are a number of other facilities and properties, which ISG owns across the United States which
present incidental environmental liabilities. The undiscounted cost of future investigations and likely
remediation at these sites is estimated to be $16.

We are spending about $4 per year to properly dispose of contaminated PCB equipment and asbestos
material that periodically deteriorates. The estimated undiscounted cost of such future disposal is $48. This
amount does not include costs to dispose of all such material in our facilities upon closure or dismantling.

ISG purchased only selected assets of Bethlehem, Acme and LTV through sales in bankruptcy
proceedings. The sales orders issued by the U.S. Bankruptcy Courts having jurisdiction over each transaction
explicitly provide that the sellers retained asbestos-related liability, and that ISG shall not be deemed as a
successor to any seller with respect to asbestos-related liabilities or any other matter. Despite the foregoing, it
is possible that future claims with respect to historic asbestos exposure might be directed at us. The Company
considers the risk of incurring liability as the result of such claims extremely remote.

In 2003, the Company spent approximately $90 for recurring costs to manage hazardous substances and
pollution in ongoing operations. Spending for environmental compliance related capital expenditures to limit
or monitor pollutants was $5 in 2003 and the Company expects to spend an average of $38 per year for capital
expenditures through 2008 to meet environmental standards.

ISG has guaranteed the debt of a joint venture in the amount of $2.5 and has guaranteed a joint venture's
operating lease with annual payments of $6.6 through 2008 and one monthly payment of $0.6 in 2009.

Other contingent liabilities with respect to product warranties and other matters arise in the normal
course of business. In the opinion of management, any such unrecognized matters, would not have a material
eÅect on the Company's Ñnancial position, results of operations, or cash Öows.

(9) Pension and Other Postretirement BeneÑt Plans

Under ISG's labor agreement with the United Steelworkers of America (USWA), the Company and the
USWA established deÑned contribution beneÑt trusts to fund pensions and retiree medical and death beneÑts
for retirees and dependents from USWA represented bargaining units of LTV, Bethlehem and ISG.
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Contributions to the pension trust are an annual amount per employee for 2003 and 2002 and $1.50 per hour
paid for 2003. The related expense was $45.0 ($25.9 based on hours paid and $19.1 based on number of
employees) for 2003 and $7.6 (based on the number of employees) for 2002. About $5.8 was paid in 2003 and
about $47.0 is expected to be paid in 2004 for prior years. Contributions to the retiree medical and death
beneÑts trust are based on ISG's quarterly EBITDA and certain overtime hours worked as deÑned in the
agreement beginning in 2003. Related 2003 expense was $4.3, which will be paid in 2004.

ISG also has a deÑned beneÑt retiree medical and death beneÑt plans covering USWA employees who
are eligible to retire under the current labor agreements. The Company does not intend to provide similar
retiree medical beneÑts for employees who retire after the current labor agreement expires. ISG is not
required to pre-fund any beneÑts and expects any beneÑts to be paid in 2004 to be minimal.

The accumulated postretirement beneÑt obligation and net periodic postretirement beneÑt costs
presented below do not reÖect the eÅects of the recently passed legislation ""Medicare Prescription
Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003.'' We have not completely assessed the impact of this Act
to determine if the currently existing plan will be modiÑed and what Ñnancial impact, if any, it may have on
our future expenses and obligations.

In the Bethlehem acquisition, ISG acquired a 62.3% interest in Hibbing Taconite Company (Hibbing),
an iron ore mining joint venture that is pro rata consolidated in ISG's consolidated Ñnancial statements.
Hibbing maintains a noncontributory deÑned beneÑt pension plan for hourly and salary employees with
beneÑts based on years of service and compensation. Hibbing funds the pension plans within statutory
guidelines. Hibbing also provides retiree medical and death beneÑts to most full-time employees with 30 years
of service or employees who are 60 years of age with 15 years of service. ISG's prorated required contribution
to the plan based on net tons produced in 2003 will be $1.0 in 2004.
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ISG's consolidated pension and other postemployment beneÑts information, at our measurement date of
December 31, follows:

Pension Other BeneÑts

2003 2003 2002

(Dollars in millions)

Change in beneÑt obligation:

Postretirement beneÑt obligation at Bethlehem purchase
date/beginning of period ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $74.1 $32.3 $32.2

Service cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.5 2.9 Ì

Interest cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3.0 5.8 0.1

BeneÑts paid ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1.7) (0.7) Ì

Plan changes (primarily additional employees from acquisition) ÏÏÏÏ (2.7) 89.5 Ì

Net actuarial losses/other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2.5 12.0 Ì

Postretirement beneÑt obligation at end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 76.7 141.8 32.3

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at Bethlehem purchase date ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 51.1 10.1 Ì

Actual return on plan assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6.1 1.2 Ì

Net company contributions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2.1 Ì Ì

BeneÑts paid ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1.7) Ì Ì

Fair value of plan assets at end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 57.6 11.3 Ì

Funded status of plan:

Unfunded obligation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 19.1 130.5 32.3

Unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.8 (12.3) Ì

Unrecognized prior service costÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (72.4) (32.0)

Net amount recognized in the balance sheetÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $24.9 $45.8 $ 0.3
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The accumulated beneÑt obligation for pensions at December 31, 2003 was $68.7.

Weighted average assumptions as of December 31 follow:

Discount rate Ì ISG ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ n/a 6.00% 6.50%

Discount rate Ì Hibbing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6.25% 6.25% n/a

Expected long-term return on plan assets Ì HibbingÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8.50% 8.50% n/a

Average rate of compensation increase Ì HibbingÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4.11% n/a n/a

Projected health care cost trend rate in 2004 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ n/a 10.00% 10.00%

Ultimate trend rate Ì ISG ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ n/a 5.50% 5.50%

Ultimate trend rate Ì Hibbing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ n/a 5.00% n/a

Year ultimate trend rate is achieved Ì ISG ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ n/a 2013 2012

Year ultimate trend rate is achieved Ì HibbingÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ n/a 2009 n/a

Net periodic post retirement beneÑt cost:

Service cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1.5 $ 2.8 $ Ì

Interest costÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3.0 5.8 0.1

Expected return on plan assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (2.8) (0.7) Ì

Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost/otherÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.5 11.4 0.2

Total net periodic postretirement beneÑt cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 2.2 $ 19.3 $ 0.3

The plan asset allocations and target allocations are:

Pension Assets Other BeneÑts

2004 2004
Target 2003 Target 2003

Asset category:

Equity securitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 70.0% 74.5% 65.0% 67.1%

Debt securities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 25.0 20.5 35.0 32.9

Real estate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.0 5.0 0.0 0.0

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

The expected return on plan assets represents the weighted average expected returns for each asset
category. Expected returns are based on historical performance adjusted for current trends.

A one-percentage-point increase or decrease in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the
following eÅects:

Increase Decrease

EÅect on total of service and interest cost components ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1.1 $(0.9)

EÅect on accumulated postretirement beneÑt obligation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 18.1 (15.2)

As a result of the Bethlehem acquisition, ISG is required to provide lifetime medical coverage under the
Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA) to Bethlehem's retirees and their
surviving spouses. Upon a retiree's death, his or her surviving spouse and dependent children may elect
coverage up to an additional 36 months. ISG charges the participants a premium to participate in this
program, and individuals who leave the program may not re-enter. Persons with ongoing illnesses or a high
expectation of using healthcare services are more likely to enroll in this program than others. COBRA
regulations preclude the use of a factor to reÖect this phenomenon in establishing premiums. Therefore, ISG
is likely to incur healthcare costs in excess of the premium amounts received from the participants.

F-22



INTERNATIONAL STEEL GROUP INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

Accordingly, we recorded an actuarial liability of $50.9 in connection with the Bethlehem acquisition.
DiÅerences between our future experience and the actuarially expected amounts will be amortized over the
expected remaining lives of the participants.

In connection with COBRA, the following amounts were recorded:

Liability recognized at acquisitionÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $50.9

Interest cost on the liabilityÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2.0

Premiums received in excess of healthcare claims and expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.5

Balance: December 31, 2003 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $54.4

The amounts recorded in our balance sheet for pension, other postretirement beneÑts and COBRA are:

2003 2002

Pensions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 24.9 $ Ì

Other postretirement beneÑts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 45.8 0.3

COBRA ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 54.4 Ì

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 125.1 0.3

Current portionÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (24.1) (0.3)

Long-term pension and other retiree beneÑts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $101.0 $ Ì

(10) Commitments

As part of the acquisition of the assets of LTV, ISG assumed a Ñve-year supply contract to provide hot
rolled bands to United States Steel Corporation (U.S. Steel) at predetermined prices. At inception, the
U.S. Steel supply contract was scheduled to provide a total of 2,250,000 net tons through March 2006. The
contracted selling prices to U.S. Steel were below the current market prices. Accordingly, ISG recorded a
liability that is being amortized to income as the products are shipped representing the net present value of the
diÅerence between the contract prices and current market prices. In November 2003, the contract was
modiÑed as part of an asset swap agreement with U.S. Steel that was accounted for as a nonmonetary
transaction. The revised contract is in eÅect until March 1, 2006 and requires ISG to provide U.S. Steel with
up to 840,000 net tons of hot rolled bands at prices below current market price. The recorded liability of $15.0
at December 31, 2003 is being amortized into income as the products are shipped.

We have entered into various supply agreements for services, natural gas transportation, industrial gases
and certain raw materials that contain minimum annual requirements. Based upon prices in eÅect at
December 31, 2003, the following table presents Ñrm commitments relating to these agreements for the next
Ñve years and thereafter:

2004ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 198.0

2005ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 239.4

2006ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 216.1

2007ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 207.5

2008ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 207.3

2009 and thereafter ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 825.3

$1,893.6

The Company leases certain manufacturing equipment, oÇce space and computer equipment under non-
cancelable leases that expire at various dates through 2018. Rental expenses on operating leases were $23.8 for
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the year ended December 31, 2003 and $0.2 for the period ended December 31, 2002. Future minimum
operating lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases in eÅect at December 31, 2003 are as follows:

2004 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 34.6

2005 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 33.4

2006 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 24.0

2007 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 21.1

2008 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 20.4

2009 and thereafterÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 83.1

$216.6

(11) Related Parties

The Company has transactions in the normal course of business with various related parties. Approval by
a majority of ISG's disinterested directors is required to approve any transactions between ISG and a 5% or
greater stockholder.

Wilbur L. Ross is a director of the Company and is a principal of WL Ross and Co., which manages two
funds that beneÑcially own 32.9% of ISG's common stock at December 31, 2003. During the year ended
December 31, 2003 and period ended December 31, 2002, the Company incurred $5.9 and $6.2 for fees and
out-of-pocket expenses associated with Ñnancial advisory services.

Cleveland-CliÅs Inc. is a beneÑcial owner of 5.7% of ISG's common stock as of December 31, 2003 and
the Chairman and Chief Executive OÇcer was a director of ISG from ISG's inception until February 2004.
The Company has a 15-year supply agreement with Cleveland-CliÅs to purchase all of its iron ore pellet
requirements for use in certain of ISG's blast furnaces at prices that are adjusted annually for changes in the
producer price index and ISG's average realized hot rolled band selling prices. The supply agreement can be
extended beyond the initial term with the consent of both parties or can be terminated at the end of the initial
term with a two-year advance termination notice. During the year ended December 31, 2003 and for the
period ended December 31, 2002, the Company purchased iron ore pellets for $236.1 and $119.7, respectively,
under this agreement. Under the Bethlehem acquisition, ISG assumed an agreement to sell iron ore pellets to
Cleveland-CliÅs that resulted in sales of approximately $20.7 since the date of acquisition.

Park Corporation, whose Chairman and Chief Executive OÇcer served as a director of ISG from June
2002 to May 5, 2003, beneÑcially owned 9.0% of ISG's common stock as of December 31, 2003 through
Georgia Financial LLC, its wholly-owned subsidiary. The Park Corporation provided $6.4 of supplies and
services to ISG during 2003. Under the Bethlehem acquisition, ISG assumed an agreement that resulted in
approximately $6.9 of ingot sales to Park Corporation since the date of acquisition. All transactions with Park
Corporation were at market prices.

GE Capital is a stockholder of ISG. The Company has various capital lease arrangements Ñnanced
through GE Capital and a $60.0 credit agreement for Columbus Coatings Company. Since the date of
acquisition, the Company made lease payments of approximately $1.5 to GE Capital and principal payments
of $2.1 under the credit agreement with Columbus Coatings Company.

At December 31, 2003, ISG had a $4.6 account receivable from Cleveland-CliÅs, a $1.3 account
receivable from Park Corporation, a $4.0 account payable to Park Corporation and a $57.8 debt to GE Capital
under a credit agreement with Columbus Coatings Company.
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(12) Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2003 and the period from inception, February 22, 2002, through December 31, 2002.

Quarter Ended

3/29/2003 6/28/2003 9/27/2003 12/31/2003

Revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $461.7 $1,005.1 $1,184.9 $1,418.3

Cost of sales ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $451.5 $ 982.4 $1,125.3 $1,277.7

Net (loss) income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (2.3) $ (27.5) $ (18.6) $ 24.9

Net (loss) income applicable to common stock ÏÏ $ (2.3) $ (27.5) $ (18.6) $ (48.7)

Income (loss) per share:

BasicÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(0.03) $ (0.41) $ (0.24) $ (0.57)

Diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(0.03) $ (0.41) $ (0.24) $ (0.57)

Quarter Ended

6/29/2002 9/28/2002 12/31/2002

Revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 71.4 $363.7 $498.0

Cost of salesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 74.7 $287.8 $392.8

Net (loss) incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (9.5) $ 34.5 $ 43.1

Income (loss) per share:

Basic ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(0.15) $ 0.53 $ 0.63

Diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(0.15) $ 0.51 $ 0.62

(13) Subsequent Event (Unaudited)

On February 19, 2004, we entered into and agreement to acquire most of the assets of the Weirton Steel
Corporation for about $255 million, which includes assuming certain liabilities. Closing is subject to
bankruptcy court approval, anti-trust matters and customary closing conditions. The process of obtaining
bankruptcy court approval will include the solicitation by Weirton of competing oÅers for its assets, and there
can be no assurance that this transaction will be consummated.
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The Board of Directors and Stockholders
International Steel Group Inc.:

Under date of March 9, 2004, we reported on the consolidated balance sheets of International Steel
Group Inc. and subsidiaries (Company) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, stockholders' equity and cash Öows for the year ended December 31, 2003 and the
period from inception, February 22, 2002, through December 31, 2002, as contained in this annual report on
Form 10-K. In connection with our audits of the aforementioned consolidated Ñnancial statements, we also
audited the related consolidated Ñnancial statement Schedule II-Valuation and Qualifying Accounts. This
Ñnancial statement schedule is the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on this Ñnancial statement schedule based on our audits.

In our opinion, such Ñnancial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated
Ñnancial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

 

Cleveland, Ohio
March 11, 2004
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Additions

Balance at Charged to
Beginning Costs and Charges to Balance at

ClassiÑcation of Period Expenses Other Deductions End of Period

(Dollars in millions)

Allowances for receivables

December 31, 2002 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ Ì 16.2 Ì (8.9) $ 7.3

December 31, 2003 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $7.3 96.6 26.2(a) (93.5) $ 36.6

Valuation allowance for net deferred tax
asset

December 31, 2003 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ Ì 5.3 1,278.9(a) (23.9) $1,260.3

(a) Balance established as a result of Bethlehem acquisition.
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INTERNATIONAL STEEL GROUP INC.

OFFICERS, DIRECTORS AND FACILITIES

OÇcers

Rodney B. Mott
President and Chief Executive OÇcer

V. John Goodwin
Chief Operating OÇcer

Leonard M. Anthony
Chief Financial OÇcer and Secretary

Lonnie A. Arnett
Vice President, Controller and
Chief Accounting OÇcer

William Brake, Jr.
Vice President & General Manager,
ISG Cleveland

Robert J. Dalrymple
Vice President, Engineering &
Services

Brian D. Kurtz
Vice President, Finance and Treasurer

John D. LeÖer
Vice President & General Manager,
ISG Sparrows Point

John C. Mang III
Vice President & General Manager,
ISG Burns Harbor

Jerome V. Nelson
Vice President, Sales & Marketing

Gordon C. Spelich
Vice President, Business Development

Karen A. Smith
Vice President & Corporate Manager
Human Resources

Thomas F. Wood
Vice President & Corporate Manager
Labor Relations

Directors

Wilbur L. Ross Chairman and CEO of WL Ross & Co. Chairman
LLC (a merchant banking Ñrm)

Rand V. Araskog Retired Chairman and CEO of ITT Director
Corporation (formerly a global
telecommunications company,
predecessor to ITT Industries)

William C. Bartholomay Vice Chairman of Willis Group Director
Holdings, Inc. (an insurance brokerage
and Ñnancial services company)

James C. Boland Vice Chairman of the Cleveland Director
Cavaliers and the Gund Company
(professional basketball operation)

Rodney B. Mott President and CEO of International Director
Steel Group Inc.

Peter J. Powers President and CEO of Powers Global Director
Strategies, LLC (a consulting Ñrm)

Audit Committee

James C. Boland Chairman
Rand V. Araskog
William C. Bartholomay

Compensation Committee

William C. Bartholomay Chairman
Rand V. Araskog
Peter J. Powers

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Rand V. Araskog Chairman
William C. Bartholomay
Peter J. Powers

Corporate Headquarters

International Steel Group Inc.
3250 Interstate Drive
RichÑeld, OH 44286

Production Facilities

Cleveland, OH
Indiana Harbor, IN
Burns Harbor, IN
Sparrows Point, MD
Riverdale, IL
Coatesville, PA
Steelton, PA
Hennepin, IL
Columbus, OH
Conshohocken, PA
Lackawanna, NY

Homer Research Facility

Bethlehem, PA

Other Operations

ISG has a coke producing facility
located in Warren, Ohio.
ISG owns the assets of seven short-line
railroads and an interstate truck
broker. ISG also operates under long-
term charters, two self-unloading ore
vessels.

Joint Ventures % ownership
Hibbing Taconite 62.3%
Hibbing, MN

AK-ISG Coatings Company, L. P. 40.0%
Cleveland, OH

Double G Coatings Company L. P. 50.0%
Jackson, MS

Steel Construction Systems 45.0%
Orlando, FL

Indiana Pickling and 20.0%
Processing Company
Portage, IN

Bethlehem Roll Technologies LLC 50.0%
Sparrows Point, MD

Chesapeake Heavy Roll 50.0%
Machinery Services, LLC
Sparrows Point, MD

Steel Health Resources, LLC 47.5%
Chesterton, IN



The ISG website provides information about ISG,
its businesses, facilities and capabilities. It also
serves as the portal of public information about
the Company, including annual reports, SEC 
filings, news releases and ISG web casts. ISG’s
internet address is www.intlsteel.com.

Printed copies of public documents are avail-
able by writing to:

International Steel Group Inc.
Attention: Investor Relations
3250 Interstate Drive
Richfield, OH 44286

Common Stock Information
ISG’s common stock is listed on the New York
Stock Exchange (NYSE) under the stock symbol
ISG. The number of shareholders of record of
ISG’s common stock as of December 31, 2003
was 47.

Registrar and Transfer Company is ISG’s principal
transfer agent and registrar. Please contact Reg-
istrar and Transfer Company at 1-800-368-5948
with all inquiries and requests to transfer stock,
change name and address, replace lost certifi-
cates and consolidate duplicate accounts.

Annual Meeting
International Steel Group Inc.’s 2004 annual
meeting will be held on Wednesday, May 26,
2004, beginning at 2:00 P.M., in the Marriott Key
Center, 127 Public Square, Cleveland, OH 44114.

Duplicate Mailings
The Company is required by law to mail to
each name on the stockholder list unless the
stockholder requests that duplicate mailings
be eliminated. To eliminate duplicate mailings,
forward mailing labels indicating which name(s)
to retain and which name(s) to delete. A request
for deletion of name(s) from the mailing will not
affect proxy mailings.

Address requests to: 
International Steel Group Inc. 
Attention: Investor Relations 
3250 Interstate Drive 
Richfield, OH 44286

Shareholder Information
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http://www.intlsteel.com


International Steel Group Inc. / 3250 Interstate Drive, 2nd Floor / Richfield, Ohio 44286-9000
www.intlsteel.com

http://www.intlsteel.com

